












BOARD OF EDUCATION
MEETING

  

  

JANUARY 16, 2006

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BUSINESS MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147th STREET

JANUARY 16, 2006
AGENDA

Call to Order

A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and
comments on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board
President before the meeting begins.

E. Routine Matters*
1. Election of Officers
2. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – December 19, 2005
3. *Approval of Bills
4. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File

F. Information Items
1. Employees of the Month
2. Superintendent’s Report
3. Board Comments/Announcement
4. Report from Student Representatives

G. Unfinished Business:

H. New Business
1. Approval of VOIP Telephone Systems Contract
2. Approval of Official Newspaper
3. Approval of Official Depositories
4. Approval of 2007-2008 Calendar
5. Approval of Capacity Standards for Option Enrollment
6. Approval of Guidelines for Transfer Within District
7. Approval of Enrollment Option Program Deadline
8. Approval of Rule 1310.1 – Community – Complaints
9. First Reading of Policy 6262 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Taught

Curriculum – Field Trips
10. Approval of Rule 6315.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Millard

Education Program - Use of Assessment Data
11. Approval of Rule 6700-.7 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment –

Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics
and Activities (Travel and Trips) – Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines - Middle
Schools

2



Agenda
January 16, 2006
Page 2

12. Approval of Rule 6700.8 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular
School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities
(Travel and Trips) – Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines – High Schools

13. Partnership with Metropolitan Community College
14. Approval of Millard West High School Contract Documents
15. Approval of Ackerman Design Development
16. Approval of Design Development for Elementary #25
17. Approval of Selection of Auditor
18. Approval of Selection of Insurance Consultant
19. Approval of Selection of Employee Benefits Consultant
20. Approval of Selection of 403(B) Retirement Benefits Consultant
21. Approval of Personnel Action: Amendment to Continuing Contract, Rescission of

Leave of Absence, Resignations, New Hires, and Voluntary Early Separation
Program

22. Litigation (Executive Session)

I. Reports
1. Enrollment Report
2. Bond Issue Construction Report
3. Quarterly Construction Report
4. Operation and Maintenance Quarterly Report
5. Food Service Quarterly Report
6. Quarterly Investment Report
7. Legislative Update

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 23, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Retired Teachers’ Luncheon on Wednesday, February 1, 2006 at 12:00 Noon at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 6, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Retired Administrators’ Luncheon on Friday, February 10, 2006 at 12:00 Noon at the

Deon Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
5. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 13, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 20, 2006, at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in
a single motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board
member.

3



.BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BUSINESS MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET

JANUARY 16, 2006

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM
A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and
comments on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board
President prior to the meeting.

E.1. Election of Officers

*E.2. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of
Education Minutes – December 19, 2005. (See enclosure.)

*E.3. Motion by , seconded by , to approve the bills. (See
Enclosures.)

*E.4. Motion by , seconded by , to receive the Treasurer’s Report
and Place on File. (See enclosure.)

F.1. Employees of the Month

F.2. Superintendent’s Comments

F.3. Board Comments/Announcements

F.4. Report from Student Representatives

H.1. Motion by , seconded by, _____________, that the contract for VoIP
equipment and four years of support be awarded to New Vision Communications, Inc.
for a Nortel solution in an amount not to exceed $1,171,015.16 and that the Assistant
Superintendent of Technology and District legal counsel be authorized and directed to
execute any and all documents related to this project. (See enclosures.)

H.2. Motion by , seconded by, ______________ to continue to publish legal
notices of regular and special meetings of the Board of Education in the Daily Record,
unless the deadline dictates publication in the World-Herald or Midlands Business
Journal. (See enclosure.)

H.3. Motion by , seconded by, ______________That the district designate the
First National Bank of Omaha and the Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund Plus

4



Administrative Memorandum
January 16, 2006
Page 2

as the primary depositories for school district funds with the further designation of
Wells Fargo Bank, US Bank, Great Western Bank, and Omaha State Bank for school
activity fund deposits. (See enclosure.)

H.4. Motion by , seconded by, ______________ to approve the 2007-2008
Calendar. (See enclosure.)

H.5. Motion by , seconded by, ______________ to adopt the resolution
regarding Enrollment Standards for the Enrollment Option Program for 2006-2007
school year. (See enclosure.)

H.6. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________ to approve the
guidelines for transfer within the District for the 2006-2007 school year. (See
enclosure.)

H.7 Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, that no further
enrollment option waivers be accepted after August 11, 2006, for students requesting to
enter the Millard school district for the 2006-2007 school year unless required by law.
Students may be granted a waiver to leave the Millard school district anytime during
the 2006-2007 school year. (See enclosure.)

H.8. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule
1310.1 – Community – Complaints. (See enclosure.)

H.9. First Reading of Policy 6262 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Taught
Curriculum – Field Trips. (See enclosure.)

H.10. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 6315.1
– Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Millard Education Program – Use of
Assessment Data. (See enclosure.)

H.11. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 6700.7
– Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs
and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and Trips) –
Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines Middle Schools. See enclosure.)

H.12. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule
6700.8 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular School Sponsored
Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and Trips) –
Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines High Schools. (See enclosure.)

H.13. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to include the
additional Metropolitan Community College Academies as an option for Millard
Students. (See enclosure.)

H.14 Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract
documents for the Millard West High School project. (See enclosure.)

5



Administrative Memorandum
January 16, 2006
Page 3

H.15. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the design
development phase for Ackerman Elementary and that the architects proceed to the
construction documents phase. (See enclosure.)

H.16. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the design
development phase for Elementary #25 and that the architects proceed to the
construction documents phase.. (See enclosure.)

H.17. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, (1) that approval be
given to the selection of Graeve, Garrelts, Denham &b Bruce as the District’s auditing
firm, (2) that an auditing services contract that is consistent with the accepted proposal
be drafted, and (3) that the associate superintendent for general administration be
authorized and directed to execute the auditing services contract and any other
documents related to this matter. (See enclosure.)

H.18. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, (1) that approval be
given to the selection of the Harry A. Koch Company as the District’s insurance
consultant for property, casualty, liability, and workers compensation insurance, (2)
that a consulting contract that is consistent with the accepted proposal be drafted, and
(3) that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and
directed to execute the consulting contract and any other documents related to this
matter. (See enclosure.)

H.19. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, (1) that approval be
given to the selection of SilverStone Group as the District’s employee benefits
consultant, (2) that a contract consistent with the accepted proposal be drafted, and (3)
that the Associate Superintendent for Human Resources or designee be authorized and
directed to execute the employee benefits contract and any other documents related to
this matter. (See enclosure.)

H.20. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, (1) that approval be
given to the selection of Citizens Bank and Trust, Maryville, Missouri as the District’s
employee benefits consultant, (2) that a contract consistent with the accepted proposal
be drafted, and (3) that the Associate Superintendent or designee be authorized and
directed to execute the retirement benefits contract and any other documents related to
this matter. (See enclosure.)

H.21. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to Amendment to
Continuing Contracts, Rescission of Leave of Absence, Resignation, New Hires, and
Voluntary Early Separation Program. (See enclosures.)

H.20. Litigation (Executive Session)

I. Reports
1. Enrollment Report
2. Bond Issue Construction Report
3. Quarterly Construction Report

6



Administrative Memorandum
January 16, 2006
Page 4

4. Operation and Maintenance Quarterly Report
5. Food Service Quarterly Report
6. Quarterly Investment Report
7. Legislative Update

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 23, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Retired Teachers’ Luncheon on Wednesday, February 1, 2006 at 12:00 Noon at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 6, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Retired Administrators’ Luncheon on Friday, February 10, 2006 at 12:00 Noon at the

Deon Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
5. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 13, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 20, 2006, at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in
a single motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board
member.

7









11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: VoIP Telelephone System (Voice over Internet Protocol) Contract

MEETING DATE: 16 January 2006

DEPARTMENT: Technology Division

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: VoIP Telephone System
(Voice over Internet Protocol) Contract

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Requested X

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Currently, the Millard Public Schools utilizes ISDN
Telephone equipment for all buildings except Millard North High School, Millard South High
School, Beadle Middle School, and the CSMI leased facility. The latter uses 3Com VoIP
equipment and the three schools use Millenium digital telephone equipment. The ISDN
equipment is over twenty years old and was, in many instances, donated or used equipment when
acquired. As a part of the Bond passed in February 2005, and as reviewed in a November 14,
2005, report to the Board of Education, it is the intent of the Technology Division to move the
District to VoIP telephone technology in the future. A District-wide VoIP telephone solution
will be capable of providing redundant telephone communications with such features as
voicemail, call-forwarding, conference calling, one-touch recording of calls, and many others.

As such, eight responses to an RFP for VoIP equipment were received on December 6, 2005.
Vendor proposals were reviewed by John Fabry, District Systems Analyst, Malcolm Chai,
Telecommunications Specialist, and Mark Feldhausen, Assistant Superintendent of Technology.
Four vendors were eliminated for reasons that included: non-responsiveness or significantly
incomplete responses to the RFP regarding both technical capabilities, functionality of proposed
systems, support staff numbers and qualifications, references, history of similar projects, and
costs. The four remaining vendors were contacted and interviewed regarding technical and
functional clarifications, RFP costs, and Total Cost of Ownership (TCO) over the four years of
the proposed contract. These vendors, their proposed solutions, RFP costs, and TCO are
provided in the attached (see Addendum I).

Based on a review of these responses and cost analyses (including implementation costs,
equipment costs, training, and yearly maintenance and support costs = Total Cost of Ownership
for the life of the four-year contract), it is recommended that the Board approve the purchase and
installation of a Nortel VoIP solution as proposed by New Vision Communications, Inc.

111



Nortel and New Visions Communications, Inc. were judged to have the best over-all solution at a
competitive price of those solutions and vendors that were judged to have met the RFP
conditions and specifications. New Visions Communications, Inc. comes highly recommended
by references such as Creighton University, The Gallup Organization, ConAgra, HDR, and
others.

The Nortel VoIP solution will provide the District with a state-of-the-art telephone
communications system featuring not only the standard features and functionality of call
forwarding, caller identification, conference calling, and voicemail, but also one-touch recording,
and meet me conferencing. This system will also assist the District in addressing E911 issues
when guidelines are provided by the State of Nebraska.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for VoIP equipment and four
years of support be awarded to New Vision Communications, Inc. for a Nortel solution in an
amount not to exceed $1,171,015.16 and that the Assistant Superintendent of Technology and
District legal counsel be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to this
project.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Mark Feldhausen

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

112



Addendum I
VOIP Contract Comparisons

12/2005

Vendor VoIP
Solution

RFP
Proposed

Cost
Est. TCO Total

Hardware &
Software

SOW &
Implementation

4 Yrs.
Maintenance

4 Yrs.
Software

Maintenance

Other Req. /
options Cost for 4 yrs.

Choice
Solutions Avaya $1,143,470.27 $944,210.27 $199,260.00 $358,584.63 unknown $1,502,054.90

Cross
Communications Avaya $746,451.00 $568,167.00 $168,534.00 $278,064.00 unknown

call
accounting

requires
server $1,014,765.00

New Visions
Communications Nortel $791,461.13 $607,310.17 $184,150.96 $277,739.86 $77,305.84 $24,508.33 $1,171,015.16

Vital Systems Cisco $835,545.04 $804,401.00 $0.00 $250,214.40 $112,121.00 $22,590.00 $1,189,326.40

113



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM:
MEETING DATE: Monday, January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Superintendent's Office

TITLE AND BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Designation of Official Newspaper

ACTION DESIRED: Approval X Information Only __

BACKGROUND: In accordance with Nebraska law and district policy, advance
publicized notice is made before regular and special Board of
Education meetings by a method designated by the Board and recorded
in the minutes.

Since January 12, 2004, the Daily Record has been designated as the
official newspaper. The Daily Record also is the official newspaper for
the City of Omaha and County of Douglas. In the event that a special
meeting is called after the deadline has passed for the Daily Record, the
meeting is advertised in the World-Herald or Midlands Business
Journal (MBJ).

In addition to publication in the official newspaper, the school board
meeting schedule is listed in the district calendar, Board Briefs
newsletter, and district web site. Agendas are placed on the web site
and posted on the bulletin board in the lobby of the Don Stroh
Administration Center on Fridays before the meetings. Upon request,
agendas are faxed to the media.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: The Daily Record charges 60 cents per line; circulation is 2,000. The

Midlands Business Journal charges 68 cents per line; circulation is
5,000. The World-Herald charges $8.11 per line; metro-area
circulation is 200,000. The average notice runs about 10 lines.

RECOMMENDATION: Continue to publish legal notices of regular and special meetings of the
Board of Education in the Daily Record, unless the deadline dictates
publication in the World-Herald or Midlands Business Journal.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: Parameter: We will always communicate effectively, both internally

and externally, in order to implement our Strategic Plan, operate our
schools, and maintain high levels of community support.

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Amy Friedman

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: ______________________________________________

114



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Designation of Official Depository

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Designation of Official Depository – Taking official action to designate which institutions

will be used for depositing school district funds during the coming year.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: School districts are required by Nebraska statutes to officially designate which financial
institutions they will be using for the purpose of depositing funds. This action is taken at
the organizational meeting each year.

Currently, the First National Bank of Omaha is providing all of our banking services except
for some activity fund related services which are provided by Wells Fargo Bank (formerly
Norwest Bank), US Bank, Omaha State Bank, and Great Western Bank (formerly Douglas
County Bank and Trust).

School district funds are also invested in the Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund
Plus. This is a statewide investment pool that provides short-term investment opportunities
for Nebraska school districts and ESU’s.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: We could change depository institutions to other qualified institutions.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the district designate the First National Bank of Omaha and the
Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund Plus as the primary depositories for school
district funds with the further designation of Wells Fargo Bank, US Bank, Great Western
Bank, and Omaha State Bank for school activity fund deposits.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Chris Hughes, Accounting Manager; and, Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General
Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

115



116



117



118



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Capacity Standards for the Enrollment Option Program - 2006-2007

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Pupil Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Capacity Standards for the Enrollment Option Program – 2006-
2007. State law and Board Rule 5100.3 indicates that the district, by resolution, may declare a program,
class, or school unavailable to option students due to capacity.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval X

BACKGROUND: The Nebraska Enrollment Option program allows parents, in certain instances, the
opportunity to select the school district their child will attend. State law and Board Rule 5100.3 indicate
that the Board shall annually adopt a Resolution to declare a program, class, or school unavailable to
option students due to lack of capacity. If the District declares a program, class, or school unavailable to
option students due to lack of capacity, the District will set forth in the resolution the maximum number
of students it has determined constitutes capacity of its programs, classes, grade levels, and school
buildings based upon available staff, facilities, projected enrollment of resident students, projected
number of students with which the option district will contract based on existing contractual
arrangements, and availability of special education programs.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: An option is to keep schools, grades, and
programs open. To do so would require more staff and overcrowded facilities.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Adopt the attached Resolution regarding Enrollment Standards for the
Enrollment Option Program for 2006-2007 school year.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: NA

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Adoption will determine which programs,
classes, or schools are available or not available to option enrollment students. Also, Nebraska law
requires that the Board adopt a resolution whenever it determines that a class, program, or school is
unavailable to option enrollment students.

TIME LINE: On or before April 1, the District needs to notify, in writing, the parents or legal guardians
of students, the resident school district, and the State Department of Education whether or not enrollment
option applications are accepted.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Kraig J. Lofquist ___________________________________
Director of Pupil Services

Dr. Kirby Eltiste ____________________________________
Assistant Superintendent

119



ENROLLMENT STANDARDS
FOR THE ENROLLMENT OPTION PROGRAM

2006-2007

The following schools, grades, and programs are closed to students entering the Millard Schools under the
Nebraska Enrollment Option Program for the 2006-2007 school year:

ABBOTT ELEMENTARY

Abbott Elementary is closed to enrollment option students with the exception of children who move out
of the District and have attended Abbott Elementary for at least two consecutive years of uninterrupted
enrollment and complete the state enrollment option requirements. It is anticipated that enrollment at
Abbott will reach or exceed capacity for the 2006-2007 school year.

ACKERMAN ELEMENTARY

Ackerman Elementary is closed to enrollment option students with the exception of children who move
out of the District and have attended Ackerman Elementary for at least two consecutive years of
uninterrupted enrollment and complete the state enrollment option requirements. Ackerman will operate
at capacity for the 2006-2007 school year.

BLACK ELK ELEMENTARY

Black Elk Elementary is closed to enrollment option students with the exception of children who move
out of the District and have attended Black Elk Elementary for at least two consecutive years of
uninterrupted enrollment and complete the state enrollment option requirements. Black Elk will operate
at capacity for the 2006-2007 school year.

EZRA ELEMENTARY

Ezra Elementary is closed to enrollment option students with the exception of children who move out of
the District and have attended Ezra Elementary for at least two consecutive years of uninterrupted
enrollment and complete the state enrollment option requirements. It is anticipated that enrollment at Ezra
will reach or exceed capacity for the 2006-2007 school year.

NEIHARDT ELEMENTARY

Neihardt Elementary is closed to enrollment option students with the exception of children who move out
of the District and have attended Neihardt Elementary for at least two consecutive years of uninterrupted
enrollment and complete the state enrollment option requirements. Neihardt will operate at capacity for
the 2006-2007 school year.

REEDER ELEMENTARY

Reeder Elementary is closed to enrollment option students. Reeder will operate at capacity during the
2006-2007 school year.

ROHWER ELEMENTARY

Rohwer Elementary is closed to enrollment option students with the exception of children who move out
of the District and have attended Rohwer Elementary for at least two consecutive years of uninterrupted
enrollment and complete the state enrollment option requirements. Rohwer elementary will operate at
capacity for the 2006-2007 school year.

120



WHEELER ELEMENTARY

Wheeler Elementary is closed to enrollment option students. Wheeler will operate at capacity for the
2006-2007 school year.

BEADLE MIDDLE SCHOOL

Beadle is closed to enrollment option students for the 2006-2007 school year with the exception of
students who move out of the District and have attended Beadle at least two consecutive years of
uninterrupted enrollment and complete the state enrollment option requirements. It is anticipated that
enrollment at Beadle will reach or exceed capacity for the 2006-2007 school year.

MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL

Millard West is closed to enrollment option students for the 2006-2007 school year with the exception of
students who move out of the District and have attended Millard West at least two consecutive years of
uninterrupted enrollment and complete the state enrollment option requirements. West will operate at
capacity for the 2006-2007 school year.

MONTESSORI PROGRAM

The Montessori program is anticipated to be at capacity; however, enrollment option students may be
accepted as space becomes available provided they meet District and State enrollment option
requirements.

MILLARD CORE ACADEMY PROGRAM-CATHER ELEMENTARY

The Millard Core Academy at Cather Elementary is anticipated to be at capacity; however, enrollment
option students may be accepted as space becomes available provided they meet District and State
enrollment option requirements.

MILLARD LEARNING CENTER PROGRAM

The Millard Learning Center Program is closed to enrollment option students. The program will operate
at capacity for the 2006-2007 school year.

ALL SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAMS

The Millard Special Education Programs are anticipated to be at capacity; however, enrollment option
students may be accepted as space becomes available provided they meet District and State enrollment
option requirements. The student capacity for all special education programs is the minimum caseload as
previously defined by NDE Rule 51.

121



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Guidelines for Within District Transfers for the 2006-2007 School Year.

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Pupil Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Guidelines for Within District Transfers during the 2006-
2007 school year are approved by the Board each year for the next school year. If a school is at
capacity, the Within District Transfer Guidelines indicate which schools will be closed.

ACTION DESIRED: Information Only Approval X

BACKGROUND: Guidelines are required to keep schools from becoming overcrowded. Typically,
we have closed schools to “within district transfer” if the schools are considered closed to “enrollment
option”. This has been done for practical reasons rather than any requirements by law.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approval of guidelines for transfers within the District for 2006-2007
school year.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Schools will not become overcrowded
because of within district transfers.

TIME LINE: Guidelines will go into effect for the 2006-2007 school year.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT: __________________________________________

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

122



GUIDELINES FOR TRANSFERS WITHIN DISTRICT
FOR 2006-2007 SCHOOL YEAR

Due to projected enrollment for the 2006-2007 school year, the following schools, grades, and
programs will be closed to within district transfers:

ABBOTT ELEMENTARY

Abbott Elementary will be closed to any within district transfers for the 2006-2007 school year with
the exception of the children of Abbott employees.

Ackerman Elementary

Ackerman Elementary will be closed to any within district transfers for the 2006-2007 school year
with the exception of the children of Ackerman employees.

Black Elk Elementary

Black Elk Elementary will be closed to any within district transfers for the 2006-2007 school year with
the exception of the children of Black Elk employees.

EZRA ELEMENTARY

Ezra Elementary will be closed to any within district transfers for the 2006-2007 school year with the
exception of the children of Ezra employees.

NEIHARDT ELEMENTARY

Neihardt Elementary will be closed to any within district transfers for the 2006-2007 school year with
the exception of the children of Neihardt Employees.

REEDER ELEMENTARY

Reeder Elementary will be closed to any within district transfers for the 2006-2007 school year with
the exception of the children of Reeder employees.

ROHWER ELEMENTARY

Rohwer Elementary will be closed to any within district transfers for the 2006-2007 school year with
the exception of the children of Rohwer employees.

Wheeler ElEmentary

Wheeler Elementary will be closed to any within district transfers for the 2006-2007 school year with
the exception of the children of Wheeler employees.

BEADLE MIDDLE SCHOOL

Beadle Middle School will be closed to within district transfers, with the exception of the children of
Beadle Middle School employees.

123



MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL

Millard West High School will be closed to within district transfers, with the exception of the children
of Millard West High School employees.

124



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Enrollment Option Program Deadline 2006-2007 School Year

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Pupil Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Enrollment Option Program Deadline (2006-2007) for those
who wish to option into Millard. This deadline would not allow students living outside the Millard School
District to option into the Millard Public Schools during the 2006-2007 school year if the request is
received after August 11, 2006. Students would be allowed to option out of the Millard School District
anytime during the 2006-2007 school year.

ACTION DESIRED: Information Only Approval X

BACKGROUND: Under the Nebraska Enrollment Option program, parents may, under certain
circumstances, request that their child attend a district other than their resident district. The state deadline
for enrollment option applications for the 2006-2007 school year is March 15, 2006. School districts
have until April 1, 2006, to approve or deny these applications. Parents who submit applications after the
March 15th deadline must request a waiver for release from the resident district. The only exceptions to
this rule are students who have attended the original school district for the preceding two years, or in
some circumstances, have siblings who have optioned into Millard Public Schools. Students who meet
these criteria are automatically approved to remain in the original school district if they submit an
application for enrollment option.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERED: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that no further enrollment option waivers be accepted
after August 11, 2006, for students requesting to enter the Millard school district for the 2006-2007
school year unless required by law. Students may be granted a waiver to leave the Millard school district
anytime during the 2006-2007 school year.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: If the Millard School District does not set a
firm deadline for enrollment option applications by August 11, 2006, we cannot deny enrollment option
requests from students residing in another district who, late in the school year, use enrollment option as a
way to avoid sanctions or failure due to academic, behavioral, or personal/social difficulties.

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: _______________________

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

125



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Board Rule 1310.1 Community Complaints

Meeting Date: January 16, 2006

Department Human Resources

Title and Brief
Description: We are updating Community Rule 1310.1.

Action Desired: Change Rule 1310.1.

Background: This rule has been rewritten to utilize a more user friendly format. Almost all of
the language from the original rule exists in the new rule, but it has been rearranged
under two sub-headings, (A) Informed Resolution and (B) Formal Resolution. You
will notice that we added the principal’s supervisor as an additional problem solver
in the process. We also added a sentence to cover classified staff, since the former
rule focused only on certified staff. I have attached the former rule for your
review.

Options/Alternatives
Considered: N/A

Recommendations: Approval of Rule 1310.1

Strategic Plan
Reference: N/A

Implications of
Adoption/Rejection: N/A

Timeline:

Responsible
Persons: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

Superintendent’s Signature: ______________________________________________

126



Community

Complaints 1310.1

The following procedures have been established to provide a system for receiving, considering
and acting upon complaints regarding school personnel.

A. INFORMAL RESOLUTION

1. Reasonable efforts shall be made to address the concerns and issues raised in any
complaint regarding school personnel at the earliest stage, and to reach an acceptable
resolution through the informal process.

2. In an effort to resolve all issues/complaints at the earliest stage and through informal
methods and procedures, any complaint regarding a certificated staff member shall be
first referred to the certificated staff member. Complaints regarding any classified staff
shall be presented to the supervising certificated staff member, if any, or to the building
principal.

3. When a certificated staff member receives a complaint, he/she will immediately address
the concerns and/or issues by initiating an informal conference with the complainant,
thereby providing an opportunity for a discussion and informal resolution of the concerns
or issues raised in the complaint.

4. When a complaint concerning school personnel is made directly to the Board as a whole,
the complaint shall be referred to the Superintendent.

5. When a complaint concerning school personnel is made to an individual Board member,
the Board member may explain the process for complaints regarding school personnel as
provided herein, or refer the complaint to the Superintendent.

B. FORMAL RESOLUTION

6. In the event that the initial informal conference is unsuccessful in satisfactorily addressing
and resolving the concerns and/or issues of the complainant, the complainant may pursue
formal complaint procedures by submitting the complaint in writing to the building
principal. Failure to submit the complaint in writing shall constitute an abandonment of
the complaint.

7. When a building principal receives a written complaint, the building principal will
promptly schedule a formal conference with the certificated staff member and
complainant at which time the complainant’s concerns and/or issues shall be discussed
and addressed. Failure of the complainant to participate in a formal conference will result
in the abandonment of the complaint procedure.

8. If the complainant’s concerns and/or issues are not resolved at the formal conference, the

127



building principal will notify the building principal’s supervisor, and will forward the
written complaint and a written report of the formal conference. The building principal’s
supervisor shall address the concerns and/or issues raised in the complaint and may
schedule a meeting with the complainant, if advisable. If the complainant’s concerns
and/or issues are not resolved by the building principals’ supervisor, the supervisor will
notify the Associate Superintendent of Human Resources and will forward the written
complaint, the report of the building principal, and a written summary of the issues and
proposed resolutions.

9. Upon receipt of a written complaint and the building principal’s and building principal’s
supervisor’s summary, the Associate Superintendent of Human Resources may schedule a
formal conference with all or any of the following: the certificated staff member, the
building principal, the building principal’s supervisor, and the complainant, at which time
the complainant’s concerns and/or issues shall be discussed. The Associate
Superintendent of Human Resources may undertake any needed investigation relating to
the complaint and will thereafter render a written final disposition of the complaint within
ten (10) school days of the formal conference.

10. If the complainant desires to have the disposition of the Associate Superintendent of
Human Resources reviewed by the Superintendent, then the complainant must submit a
written request for review within five (5) school days of receipt of the disposition by the
Associate Superintendent of Human Resources. The written request for review shall be
submitted to the Associate Superintendent of Human Resources who will forward to the
Superintendent the complaint, the building principal’s report, the building principal’s
supervisor’s summary, the Associate Superintendent of Human Resources written
disposition, and the request for review.

11. Upon receipt of a request for review, the Superintendent will review the complaint, the
building principal’s report, the building principal’s supervisor’s summary, and the written
disposition of the Associate Superintendent of Human Resources, and the Superintendent
may undertake any such investigation deemed appropriate. Thereafter, the
Superintendent will render a written disposition of the complaint within ten (10) school
days of his/her receipt of the request for review. The decision and disposition by the
superintendent shall be final and binding.

12. Complaints regarding instructional materials shall follow the procedures of District Rule
1310.2. Complaints regarding inappropriate conduct by school personnel or regarding
child abuse or neglect as a result of the conduct of school personnel, shall follow the
procedures of District Rule 4163.3.

Related Policies & Rules: 1310P, 1310R2, 1125P, 4163R3

Rules Approved: February 17, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: December 1, 2005 Omaha, NE

128



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Field Trips – Policy 6262 and accompanying Rules 6262.1, 6262.2 and
6262.3

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment –
Taught Curriculum – Field Trips

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL X DISCUSSION INFORMATION ONLY ___

BACKGROUND: The field trip policy is being updated. Additionally, two new rules to
specifically address middle level and high school overnight field trips have been created to
clarify practices and procedures.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve the rule as proposed.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: Parameter 1: We will always operate safe, caring
environments to ensure student learning.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Dr. Judy Porter

ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________
(Signature)

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: ______________________________________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

129



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Taught Curriculum -- Field Trips 6262

Student trips that align with approved curriculum offerings of significant educational
value shall be encouraged and shall be permitted under rules established by the
Superintendent. Students’ welfare and safety shall be primary considerations.

Legal Reference: Nebr. Rev. Stat. §79-601 (Reissue 1996); 49-489

Related Rules: 6262R1, 6262R2, 6262R3, and 6910R1

Policy Adopted: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: June 28, 1999 Omaha, NE

130



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Taught Curriculum -- Field Trips 6262.1

Field trips shall be considered as instruction and planned as such with definite objectives
determined in advance.

I. Appropriate instruction shall precede and follow each field trip.
II. Rules and regulations of the building and MPS regarding students and student

conduct shall be in effect from the time of departure until the time of return.
II.III. Written approval of parent or guardian is required for participation of pupils in

field trips.
III.IV. At the elementary and middle level, Aall field trips shall begin and end at the

school unless approved and communicated by the principal.
IV.V. Field trips requiring school bus transportation shall not interfere with the

regularly scheduled transportation of pupils to and from school.
V.VI. For a study field trip, the teacher should make the request in writing to the

principal at least ten days prior to date desired. Whenever practical, an alternate
date should also be listed. The purpose of the trip and its relation to the course
of study must be stated.

VI.VII. The principal shall approve or disapprove the request and notify the teacher (if
the request is disapproved, the reason for the disapproval shall be stated). If
approval is given, the principal shall forward a request for school bus service to
the business office seven days in advance of date requested.

VII.VIII. Teachers or other certified personnel shall accompany pupils on all field trips
and exercise control over the conduct of the pupils.

VIII.IX. When a field trip is made to a place of business or industry, it shall be required
that an employee of the host company serve as conductor.

IX.X. Appropriate educational experience and proper supervision shall be supplied
for any pupils whose parents do not wish them to participate in a field trip.

XI. Certified staff members will discuss the specific chaperone responsibilities with
the volunteer chaperones and provide written guidelines.

Related Policy and Rules: 6262P, 6262R2, 6262R3, and 6910R1

Rule Approved: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: June 28, 1999 Omaha, NE

131



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment Taught Curriculum
Overnight Field Trips – Middle School 6262.2

Overnight Field Trip Guidelines (Middle School)

I. Overnight field trips are an extension of the school day. All school rules apply.
II. Every effort should be made to find teacher or parent sponsors. Volunteer sponsors must

be screened according to the Volunteer approval process (Rule 6910.1). For volunteers,
there should be at least a one-month lead time to allow for background checks.

III. Teachers are on duty during the entire time of the field trip.
IV. Students will be under supervision of adults at all times.
V. At all times the sleeping quarters are gender specific.

VI. Volunteer Chaperones will report any behavior problems immediately to the certified staff
member(s).

VII. Certified staff members will discuss the specific chaperone responsibilities with the
volunteer chaperones and provide written guidelines.

VIII. In addition to the classroom teacher, a minimum of one additional gender specific
chaperone is required for every 25 students. Based upon the location of the trip, the number
of the chaperones may be increased.

Number of
Male Students

Number of Chaperones in
Addition to the Certified
Staff Member

Number of
Female
Students

Number of Chaperones in
Addition to the Certified
Staff Member

0-25 1 0-25 1
26-50 2 26-50 2
51-75 3 51-75 3
76-100 4 76-100 4

IX. Emergency card/contact information will be brought on the trip.
X. Emergency contact information will be provided to parents.

XI. In the event of illness or injury a parent will be contacted immediately so a plan about the
child’s welfare can be determined. A principal will be made aware of the situation.

XII. In the event of serious injury or illness 911 will be called and the parent notified of the
situation and hospital location. If there is only one sponsor, the highest priority of
supervision will determine whether a teacher will accompany the student to the hospital. A
principal will be made aware of the situation.

XIII. A school/program administrator will attend any overnight field trip where there is travel
over 100 miles.

Related Policy and Rules: 6262P, 6262R1, 6262R3, and 6910R1 Millard Public Schools

Rule Approved: Omaha, NE

132



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Taught Curriculum – Overnight Field Trips – High School 6262.3

Overnight Field Trip Guidelines (High School)

I. Overnight field trips are an extension of the school day. All school rules apply.
II. Every effort should be made to find teacher or parent sponsors. Volunteer sponsors must

be screened according to the Volunteer approval process (Rule 6910.1). For volunteers,
there should be at least a one-month lead time to allow for background checks.

III. Teachers are on duty during the entire time of the field trip.
IV. Students will be under supervision of adults.
V. At all times the sleeping quarters are gender specific.

VI. Volunteer chaperones will report any behavior problems immediately to the certified staff
member(s).

VII. Certified staff members will discuss the specific chaperone responsibilities with the
volunteer chaperones and provide written guidelines.

VIII. Consideration of student gender should be made when selecting chaperones.
IX. Emergency card/contact information will be brought on the trip.
X. Emergency contact information will be provided to parents.

XI. In the event of illness or injury, a parent will be contacted immediately so a plan about
the child’s welfare can be determined. A principal will be made aware of the situation.

XII. In the event of serious illness or injury, 911 will be called and the parent notified of the
situation and hospital location. If there is only one sponsor, the highest priority of
supervision will determine whether a teacher will accompany the student to the hospital.
A principal will be made aware of the situation.

Related Policy and Rules: 6262P, 6262R1, 6262R2, and 6910R1 Millard Public Schools

Rule Approved: Omaha, NE

133



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Revision of Rule 6315.1, Millard Education Program, Use of Assessment
Data

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services and Planning and Evaluation

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: This rule outlines the assessment practices of the
District. It must be reviewed annually. The changes suggested will clarify aspects of the
assessment program for stakeholders.

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL _X_ DISCUSSION INFORMATION ONLY __
BACKGROUND: The changes in this policy will classify all Millard developed assessments as
ELO assessments rather than distinguishing between ELO assessments and benchmark
assessments. The action will outline the administration of assessments at every grade level while
removing the suggestion that some of the yearly assessments are more important than others. The
changes also more clearly identify state assessments.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: Leave rule unchanged or make additional
revisions.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve the changes as recommended.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Revision of this rule meets the need of
annual review.

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Martha Bruckner, John Crawford, Judy Porter, Carol Newton

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ___________________________________________

BOARD ACTION:

134



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 6315.1

Millard Education Program – Use of Assessment Data

The assessment system shall take its overall direction from the District strategic plan and from state and federal
requirements. The assessment system shall be aligned with the written curriculum and shall measures measure student
progress within the primary, intermediate, middle and high school grade levels. The system shall provide
opportunities for reteaching to occur if the student does not demonstrate mastery.

The assessment system will include essential learner outcome assessments (designed to measure the Millard Education
Plan outcomes) as well as assessments designed to comply with “No Child Left Behind” legislation. Some
assessments will require reteaching and retesting while others will serve as yearly benchmark assessments.

As curriculum revisions occur, as recommended by the Assessment Steering Committee, the assessment system shall
reflect those changes and modifications to assessments and shall be approved by the Millard Board of Education. The
curriculum content areas, grade levels when administered, and the types of assessments shall be as follows:

Level: Primary grades (K-2)
Outcome When Administered Type of Assessment
Language Arts 1st Grade ELO Assessment
Writing 1st Grade ELO Assessment
Writing 2nd Grade Benchmark Assessment

ELO Assessments
Math 2nd Grade ELO Assessment

Level: Intermediate Grades (3-5)
Outcome When Administered Type of Assessment
Speaking 3rd Grade Benchmark
Reading Comprehension 3rd, 5th Grade Benchmark Assessment
Reading Comprehension 3rd, 4th, and 5thGrade ELO Assessments
Listening 5th Grade Benchmark
Writing 3rd, 4th, and 5thGrade ELO Assessments
Writing 4th, 5th Grade Benchmark Assessments
Writing 4th Grade State Writing Assessment

STARS (NE Dept. of Education)
Math 3rd, 5th Grade Benchmark Assessment
Math 3rd, 4th, and 5thGrade ELO Assessments
Social Studies 5th Grade ELO Assessment
Science 5th Grade ELO Assessment

Level: Middle School Grades (6-8)
Outcome When Administered Type of Assessment
Reading Comprehension 6th, 7th, and 8th Grade ELO Assessments
Reading Comprehension 6th, 8th Grade Benchmark Assessment
Writing 7th Grade ELO Assessment
Mathematics 6th, 7th, and 8th Grade ELO Assessments
Mathematics 6th, 8th Grade Benchmark Assessments
Social Studies 8th Grade ELO Assessment
Science 8th Grade ELO Assessment
Speaking 8th Grade STARS (NE Dept. of Education)
Writing 8th Grade STARS (NE Dept. of Education)

Level: High School Grades (9-12)
Outcome When Administered Type of Assessment
Reading Comprehension 9th Grade ELO Assessment
Writing 10th Grade ELO Assessment

135



Mathematics 10th Grade ELO Assessment
Social Studies 11th Grade ELO Assessment
Science 11th Grade ELO Assessment
Speaking Cumulative, 12th Grade STARS (NE Dept. of Education)
Writing 11th Grade STARS (NE Dept. of Education)

The preceding assessments may not be appropriate for some students with disabilities whose individualized education
programs prescribe a different course of instruction and/or different requirements for graduation. The participation of
students with disabilities, the provision of accommodations, and the provision of alternate assessments will be in
accordance with the District’s Assessment Procedures, which includes the process for identifying appropriate
assessment accommodations and alternate assessments.

I. Implementation of Assessment System

A. In accordance with Policy 6301 and Rule 6301.1, the District shall use all reasonable efforts to
provide adequate measurement by:

1. Establishing the reliability and validity of each recommended assessment;

2. Ensuring that the alignment of the assessment contents is consistent with the District’s
curriculum;

3. Ensuring that the students of the District are provided with the opportunity to learn the material
which is the subject of each assessment;

4. Ensuring the establishment of adequate and necessary reteaching; and

5. Ensuring a proper cutscore for each assessment is established through acceptable and reliable
methods.

B. Upon approval and adoption of the cutscore established for each assessment by the Board of
Education, the assessment will be incorporated in the District curriculum.

II. Description of the Standard Setting Process

Psychometrically accepted, standard methods shall be used for setting the cutscores on the assessments. All
assessments shall be re-examined and re-calibrated as needed to ensure curriculum alignment as well as
appropriateness of the cutscore.

III. Effect of Student Performance

A. When a student has successfully met the Essential Learner Outcomes assessment cutscore for each
outcome:

1. A notation shall be made in the student’s cumulative record. Such information will be
communicated to parent(s)/guardian(s) in writing.

2. Students who meet the cutscores for the high school Essential Learner Outcomes assessments,
have met an essential criteria for graduating from the Millard Public Schools. Upon successful
completion of the required number of credits as defined by Policy 6320 and Rule 6320.1, the
student shall be eligible for a graduation diploma from the Millard Public Schools.

B. If a student has not met the cutscore for a given Essential Learner Outcomes assessment or for
Benchmark Assessments, the following shall occur:

136



1. An Individual Learning Plan (ILP) shall be designed by a team of qualified staff. Classroom
teachers may refer students to the Millard Intervention Team (MIT) for assistance in evaluating
and implementing problem solving and intervention strategies.

2. Utilizing the Essential Learner Outcomes, school representatives will offer the student
supplemental learning activities that address recognized deficiencies. Supplemental learning
activities may include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Differentiated/complementary instruction during regular classes (i.e., peer tutoring,
needs groups, individualized instruction);

b. Before or after school tutorials;
c. Study hall tutorials;
d. Change of interdisciplinary teams or level of instruction;
e. Repeat of specific course(s) of study;
f. Attendance at specific class(es) designed to address deficiencies; and/or
g. Attendance at summer school.

3. If the student is verified with a disability, the IEP Team may reconvene to review the ILP and to
ensure that the IEP is written to assist the student in areas of weakness and that appropriate
accommodations are in place.

4. If the student has a 504 Accommodation Plan, the 504 Team may reconvene to review the ILP
to ensure that needed accommodations are in place in areas of weakness.

C. Procedures for high school students.

If after a re-take of an assessment, a student has not met the cutscore for a given Essential Learner
Outcomes assessment, the following shall occur:

1. The Individual Learning Plan will be reviewed by a qualified team and, if necessary, redesigned.
Students shall be referred to MIT for identification of needs if not previously referred.

2. In grades 9-12, the The student shall be re-tested using the appropriate Essential Learner
Outcomes assessment. Students shall be given the opportunity to be re-tested multiple times
until the requisite cutscore is achieved. Students shall be given notice of the opportunities for
re-testing.

3. The student will be considered ineligible for a diploma from the Millard Public Schools until
such time that the requisite cutscores are achieved for high school Essential Learner Outcomes
assessments.

4. If the student is verified with a disability or has a 504 Accommodation Plan, then the IEP or 504
Team will reconvene to review the education plan and to consider lowering the cutscore
requirement as part of the IEP or 504 Accommodation Plan. The student’s parent(s) and/or
guardian(s) shall be notified and shall also be advised of the effect of lowering the cutscore.

a. Applications for approval of lowered cutscore requirements and/or alternate assessments
may be submitted by the student’s IEP or 504 Team to the Associate Superintendent of
Educational Services for consideration and, where appropriate, approval. The Associate
Superintendent of Educational Services or designee shall decide and respond to all such
requests.

b. If the lowered cutscore is approved, the student shall then be eligible to receive a graduation
diploma with appropriate notation from the Millard Public Schools as provided in Rule
6320.1.

137



D.5. For students in grades 9-12, an An additional opportunity is available to demonstrate their student
proficiency. After two retest attempts to meet the established cutscore(s) for the Essential Learner
Outcome assessments without achieving the cutscore, students may register with the Associate
Superintendent for Educational Services to participate in a process, as provided in the District’s
Assessment Procedures, to demonstrate an appropriate level of proficiency in reading, writing, math,
science or social studies.

IV. District Procedures for Opting Out of Recommended Reteaching

A. Should a student participating in the Assessment Program not meet the requisite cutscore and be
recommended for one of the reteaching strategies listed above, the student’s parent(s)/guardian(s)
shall have the right to refuse placement of their student within the recommended strategy and either:

1. Request an alternative teaching strategy; or

2. Refuse such placement at all.

B. Such requests for an alternative teaching strategy shall be submitted in writing to the appropriate
building principal. The building principal or designee shall respond within thirty (30) calendar days.

V. District Procedures for New Students

A. At the elementary and middle school level, new students will take assessments given after their
arrival. Building principals may decide if new students will take other assessment that they have
missed.

B. At the middle school level, new students will take all middle school level assessments unless testing
opportunities are no longer available.

C.B. At the high school level, incoming students shall take all high school assessments designated for that
grade level or lower grades, regardless of their grade level when they enter the District. They may
participate in all remedial and supplemental learning activities provided by the District. Students are
required to meet the established cutscore on each of the high school Essential Learner Outcome
assessments.

VI. District Procedures for ELL Students

Students must meet all graduation requirements in the English language to earn a Millard Public Schools
diploma. ELL students who have not demonstrated adequate English language proficiencies may postpone
testing according to District procedures.

VII. Student’s Right to Appeal

A. Students who have not achieved the necessary high school cutscores as approved by the Millard
Board of Education, may appeal the denial of a diploma.

B. A student may appeal the denial of a diploma only on the grounds that the student’s failure to
achieve the required cutscore is due to:

1. The failure of the District to provide a reasonable accommodation that was previously requested
by the student and denied by the District.

2. The failure of the District to provide an alternate assessment or approve a demonstration of
proficiency, which had been previously requested by the student and denied by the District.

138



VIII. Procedures for Appeal

A. Within seven (7) days after the receipt of the notice that the student failed to achieve the cutscore
required for graduation from the Millard Public Schools, a written notice of appeal shall be served
upon the Superintendent of the Millard Public Schools or his/her designee. Such appeal shall set
forth all of the reasons for the appeal as provided herein and shall set forth the relief sought by the
student, parent(s) or guardian(s). Such notice of appeal may also include any additional information
which is relevant to the appeal.

B. Within seven (7) days after the receipt of the written notice of appeal and any supporting information
relevant to the appeal, the Superintendent or designee shall consider and render a decision on the
appeal based on whether the decision of the District was unreasonable. Such decision shall then be
forwarded to the student’s parent(s) and/or guardian(s) advising the student’s parent(s) and/or
guardian(s) of the basis for the Superintendent’s decision and the reasons therefore.

C. Within seven (7) days after the receipt of the written notification from the Superintendent or the
Superintendent’s designee, a written request may be made by the student, parent(s), or guardian(s) to
the secretary of the Millard Board of Education or the Superintendent, or designee for a hearing
before the Millard Board of Education to be held on the issue whether the decision of the
Superintendent or designee was unreasonable.

D. Such hearing shall be held before the Millard Board of Education within thirty (30) days of the date
the request for hearing was received. If a hearing before the Millard Board of Education is not
received in a timely manner, the decision of the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee
shall be final.

E. The student, parent(s) and/or guardian(s) shall be advised at least seven (7) days prior to the date of
the hearing before the Board and such notification shall set forth the date, time, and place for the
hearing before the Millard Board of Education.

F. The parties may, by mutual written agreement, extend the time for hearing or final determination.

G. The student, parent(s), and/or guardian(s) shall have the right to be represented by legal counsel and
shall have the opportunity to present such evidence that is material to the issue or issues stated in the
appeal.

H. The hearing shall be conducted in closed session and in accordance with the student privacy laws
unless the student, parent(s), and/or guardian(s) shall request, in writing, that the hearing be held in
open session. Any formal action of the Millard Board of Education shall be taken in closed session
unless such proceeding was requested by the student, parent(s), or guardian(s) to be held in open
session.

I. The decision of the Millard Board of Education shall be by vote of a majority of the members of the
Millard Board of Education and the Millard Board of Education shall reduce its findings and
decision to writing and provide the written findings and decision to the student, parent(s), and/or
guardian(s) within ten (10) days of the hearing.

IX. Annual Review.

This Rule shall be reviewed annually.

Related Policies & Rules: 6301, 6301.1, 6315, 6320, 6320.1

Rule Adopted: December 21, 1998 Millard Public Schools
Rule Revised: February 7, 2000; February 4, 2002; March 3, 2003 Omaha, NE

June 21, 2004; June 6, 2005

139



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Extracurricular School Sponsored Group Travel and Trip
Policies

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Activities and Athletics

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: Approval __X__

BACKGROUND:
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: The policy is being recommended
for approval after review and revision. The specific policies are:

6700.7 And 6700.8 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment, Extracurricular School
Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and
Trips)

The need to establish, through board policy, minimum guidelines for the leaders of
school sponsored groups to follow when taking those school sponsored groups on
overnight trips.

These policies are similar to the travel and trip policies being recommended to the board
for field trips that align with curriculum offerings.

RECOMMENDATIONS: First and second readings of the policies. Approve the
policies.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Review and approval of revisions will
meet the board guideline of regular review of district policies.

TIME LINE: N/A

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Director of Activities, Craig Whaley

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

140



6700.7

Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and

Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and

Activities (Travel and Trips)

Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines

Middle Schools

I. Every effort should be made to find teacher or parent chaperones. Volunteer

chaperones must be screened according to the Volunteer approval process (Rule

6910.1). For volunteers, there should be at least a one-month lead time to allow for

background checks.

II. Certified employees are on duty during the entire time of the travel and trip.

III. The head coach or sponsor will provide the travel and trip plan to the principal or

designee within the deadline established by the principal or designee.

IV. Students will be under supervision of adults at all times.

V. Volunteer chaperones will report any behavior problems immediately to the certified

staff member(s).

VI. Certified staff members will discuss the specific chaperone responsibilities with the

volunteer chaperones and provide written guidelines.

VII. In addition to the head coach or activity sponsor, a minimum of one additional gender

specific chaperone is required for every 25 students. Based upon the location of the

trip, the number of the chaperones may be increased.

Number of
Male Students

Number of Chaperones
in Addition to the
Certified Staff Member

Number of
Female Students

Number of Chaperones in
Addition to the Certified
Staff Member

0-25 1 0-25 1
26-50 2 26-50 2
51-75 3 51-75 3

76-100 4 76-100 4

VIII. Consideration of student gender should be made when selecting chaperones.

IX. Emergency card/contact information will be brought on the travel and trip.

141



X. Emergency contact information will be provided to parents.

XI. In the event of illness or injury, a parent will be contacted immediately so a plan

about the child’s welfare can be determined. A principal will be made aware of the

situation.

XII. In the event of serious illness or injury, 911 will be called and the parent notified of

the situation and hospital location. If there is only one coach or sponsor, the highest

priority of supervision will determine whether a coach or sponsor will accompany the

student to the hospital. A principal will be made aware of the situation.

Related Policy and Rules: 6700P, 6700.1R, 6700.2R, 6700.3R, 6700.4R, 6700.5R,
6700.6R, 6910.1

Millard Public Schools
Omaha, NE

142



6700.8

Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and

Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and

Activities (Travel and Trips)

Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines

High Schools

I. Every effort should be made to find teacher or parent chaperones. Volunteer

chaperones must be screened according to the Volunteer approval process (Rule

6910.1). For volunteers, there should be at least a one-month lead time to allow for

background checks.

II. Certified employees are on duty during the entire time of the travel and trip.

III. The head coach or sponsor will provide the travel and trip plan to the principal or

designee within the deadline established by the principal or designee.

IV. Students will be under supervision of adults.

V. Volunteer chaperones will report any behavior problems immediately to the certified

staff member(s).

VI. Certified staff members will discuss the specific chaperone responsibilities with the

volunteer chaperones and provide written guidelines.

VII. Consideration of student gender should be made when selecting chaperones.

VIII. Emergency card/contact information will be brought on the travel and trip.

IX. Emergency contact information will be provided to parents.

X. In the event of illness or injury, a parent will be contacted immediately so a plan

about the child’s welfare can be determined. A principal will be made aware of the

situation.

XI. In the event of serious illness or injury, 911 will be called and the parent notified of

the situation and hospital location. If there is only one coach or sponsor, the highest

priority of supervision will determine whether a coach or sponsor will accompany the

student to the hospital. A principal will be made aware of the situation.

143



Related Policy and Rules: 6700P, 6700.1R, 6700.2R, 6700.3R, 6700.4R, 6700.5R,
6700.6R, 6910.1

Millard Public Schools
Omaha, NE

144



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Partnership with Metropolitan Community College

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Add a Video Media Arts academy opportunity
provided by Metropolitan Community College. This additional program is due to a late proposal
by Metropolitan Community College. The Metropolitan Community College Technical
Academy (MCCTA) is designed to provide high school juniors and seniors with opportunities to
explore technical career fields. The program consists of a combination of college-level courses
and on-the-job work experience. Students will participate in the academy classes from 1:00-3:30
four days a week and will complete internship/apprenticeship work experiences one day a week.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval: X

BACKGROUND: The district has 13 academy opportunities available for students for
2006-07. Students who enroll in an MCC Academy attend class on the appropriate MCC
campus, provide their own transportation, pay tuition to earn MCC course credit, and earn
elective credit toward high school graduation. These programs create opportunities for students
that are not provided in our district and have potential to meet the needs of some students. This
opportunity is available at no cost to the district.

A schedule of the additional academies is attached.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Include the additional MCC Academy as an option for Millard
students.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: Strategy 6-10, “We will develop and implement plans to
ensure students make successful transitions into the District and from level to level, preschool to
post-secondary”. Specific result, “Ensure high school students make successful transitions to
post-secondary experiences, including careers and further education.”

TIMELINE:

RESPONSIBLE PERSON (S): Dr. Judy Porter

ASSOCIATE
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: ___________________________________

(Signature)

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________
(Signature)

145



METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY COLLEGE CAREER ACADEMY

VIDEO MEDIA ARTS**
Elkhorn Valley Campus

Year 1 Student 2006-2007
Dates Course Course Title Credits Times Days Offered

August 21–August 31
RDLS 140A Career Academy

Employability Skills
1 1:00–2:30 M, T, W, TH

September 5–November 20
PHOT 1500 Moving Image Lab 6 1:00-2:30 M, T, W, TH

December 1–February 26
PHOT 1710 Intro to Scriptwriting** 3 1:00-3:05 T, TH
PHOT 1510 Video I 3 1:00-3:05 M, W

March 5-May 11
PHOT 1620 Audio I 3 1:00-3:20 M, W,

TOTAL CREDIT HOURS 16
**Note:
PHOT 1710 requires:

 Excellent English grades plus and English teacher’s recommendation
 Enrollment is limited to students who have completed 3 solid years of English
 Please submit a writing sample with application
 Prospective students may be asked to interview for admission.

146



COURSE DESCRIPTIONS

Video Media Arts (PHOT)
PHOT 1500 – Moving Image Lab This course is an overview of methods used in moving image production.
By investigating the preproduction, production and postproduction processes, the student achieves an
understanding of how these principles integrate with still photography, video production and multimedia.

PHOT 1510 – Video I This course is an introduction to the video medium. The basics of operating a video
camera, recording a quality image and sound, and editing tape are learned and practiced. Both studio
and location assignments provide practical learning opportunities.

PHOT 1620 – Audio I This course is an introduction to the theory and application of the sound production
process with emphasis on learning and practicing sound acquisition and recording techniques.
Microphone acquisition, basic audio editing, and track mixing and sound for video and/or music are the
basis for assignments.

PHOT 1710 – Introduction to Scriptwriting Scripts are written for motion picture, video and audiovisual
programs using the structure of concept, treatment and finished script. In addition, a post-script is written
for an existing media program. Particular emphasis is given to timing and word-image relationship.

Millard Course Description:

XXX VIDEO MEDIA ARTS– 11/12 Y 10 Credits
Description: This program is provided through agreement with Metropolitan Community
College. Students will attend classes at the Elkhorn Valley Campus. Students will complete
Moving Image Lab (PHOT 1500), Intro to Scriptwriting (PHOT 1710), Video I (PHOT 1510),
Audio I (PHOT 1620) and Employability Skills (RDLS 140A). Students will be responsible for
transportation, instructional materials, tuition and fees at MCC.
Prerequisites: Approved application and interview. Contact your counselor for information.

147



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of MWHS Contract Documents

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Approval of MWHS Contract Documents – The approval of the contract

documents for the construction project at MWHS.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: The construction project at MWHS is at the contract document phase. The
contract documents are extensive. If anyone would like to review them in their
entirety, contact Ken Fossen at 895-8401 and arrangements will be made.

Attached is information from the architects (i.e., Prochaska and Associates) with
regard to the MWHS project. Curt Fields (TSA) will be at the meeting to present
the information and address questions.

If the contract documents are approved, the next presentation at a board meeting
will be the awarding of the bids for the project.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that approval be given to the contract documents for the
MWHS project.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen (Associate Superintendent for General Administration), Don Mohlman
(MRI Construction Manager), and Curt Fields (Prochaska & Assoc.)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Ackerman Elementary Design Development

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Approval of Ackerman Elementary Design Development – The approval of the

design development stage of the renovation project for Ackerman Elementary.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: Bill Cramer (and possibly others) from The Schemmer Associates will be present
to address the board with regard to the design phase for Ackerman Elementary.

Information from the architects is attached.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that approval be given to the design development phase for
Ackerman Elementary and that the architects proceed to the construction
documents phase.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration); Don Mohlman
(MRI); and Bill Cramer (TSA)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

157



158



159



160



Project Name: MPS Ackerman Elementary School
TSA Proj. Number: 05043.001
Design Phase: Design Development

TOTAL BUDGETED BUILDING RENOVATION COST $2,423,635

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST-Base Bid $2,200,276

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST-Base Bid W/ 10% Bid Contingincy $2,420,304

Alternate #1 - Translucent Skylights $50,000
Provide Skylights in Classroom Suites

Alternate #2 - Operable Partition $38,000
Provide acousticly rated partition between Music room and Gym

Alternate #3 - Table and chair Storage Rooms $50,000
Provide Storage rooms in existing Multi - Purpose Room

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST - With All Alternates $2,558,304

Assumptions:  Estimate does not include the following:
1.  Funishings and Equipment
2.  A/E fees or other soft costs
3.  Potential cost escalations due to recent oil price increases or Hurricanes.

161



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Elementary #25 Design Development

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Approval of Elementary #25 Design Development – The approval of the design

development stage of the construction project for Elementary #25 (near 168 th and
Giles).

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: Pat Phalen and/or Jim Torres from DLR Architects will be present to address the
board with regard to the design phase for the Elementary #25.

Information from the architects is attached.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that approval be given to the design development phase for
Elementary #25 and that the architects proceed to the construction documents
phase.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration); Don Mohlman
(MRI); and Pat Phalen/Jim Torres (DLR)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

162



163



164



165



166



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Selection of Auditor

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Selection of Auditor – the selection of an auditing firm to conduct the District’s

annual audit.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: For the past few years, the District has engaged the services of the Graeve,
Garrelts, Denham & Bruce to conduct its annual financial audits. This year, as a
matter of business practice, competitive proposals were sought for this service.

An RFP for a three-year contract with annual extensions (to a maximum total of
six years) for auditing services was issued. Two firms (Bland & Associates and
Graeve, Garrelts, Denham, & Bruce) responded to the RFP.

(See the attached memo for additional information.)

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended (1) that approval be given to the selection of Graeve, Garrelts,
Denham, & Bruce as the District’s auditing firm, (2) that a auditing services
contract that is consistent with the accepted proposal be drafted, and (3) that the
associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to
execute the auditing services contract and any other documents related to this
matter.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

167



MEMORANDUM

To: K. Lutz
From: K. Fossen
Re: Selection of Auditor
Date: January 9, 2006

In November, 2005 the District issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for an external
auditor for the District’s annual financial audit. Notice of the RFP was published in the
Daily Record. Two companies responded to the RFP – Graeve, Garrelts, Denham, &
Bruce (hereinafter “GGDB”) and Bland & Associates (hereinafter “Bland”). GGDB has
been the auditor for the District for the past few years.

In December, a committee composed of Steve Moore, Kirby Eltiste, Chris Hughes, and I
interviewed both of the firms. From the interviews it was apparent that both firms were
qualified professionally to conduct audits. Neither firm had offices within the boundaries
of the Millard Public Schools (Bland was located in OPS while GGDB was located in the
Elkhorn School District), however, both firms expressed support for MPS in the
boundary issue with OPS. Both firms had employees with students in MPS schools.
GGDB had a stronger history in support of MPS activities and the MPS Foundation.

In the end, there were two significant differences between the firms. One of the
differences played in favor of Bland. The other was in favor of GGDB.

The first significant difference was related to fees. The fees proposal for Bland was
$28,200 for the first year (with average annual increases of a little of 2% in subsequent
years). The fee proposal for GGDB was $35,750 (with average annual increases of a
little over 7% in subsequent years).

The second significant difference was related to experience with large school districts
similar to Millard. Bland’s experience was heavily weighted towards Native American
Tribes and related entities1. The only school districts noted in their client reference list
were Santee Public School District2 and the Standing Rock Community Grant School.
On the other hand, GGDB had experience with large school system (including the
Lincoln Public Schools and the Millard Public Schools). The experience difference
between the firms was evident when the firms were given a “surprise quiz” related to
school district spending lid laws. GGDB was able to accurately address the questions.
Bland responded that they did not know the answer and would need to conduct research
to determine the answer.

In the deliberation process, the committee discussed the issue of whether or not an
external audit was “generic” (and, therefore. the recommendation should be in favor of

1 These included the Santee Sioux Tribe of Nebraska, the Winnebago Tribe of Nebraska, and the Standing
Rock Sioux Tribe.

2 The Santee Public School District has an enrollment of approximately 132 students K-12.

168



the “low bid”) or if it required unique professional expertise (and, therefore, the
recommendation should be in favor of the most qualified firm notwithstanding the
additional cost).

At first the discussion leaned in favor of the “generic” rationale. The auditing procedure
is required by law and the reason for conducting the audit is to simply meet that
requirement. In other words, the District needs to find a firm to come in, do its thing,
create the required documents, file the report, and move on to next year.

Later the discussion focused on the intent behind the external auditing requirements. If
the reason for the auditing requirements is to assure the public that there is an external
“watch dog” reviewing the fiscal management within the District, then it would appear
that the District (on behalf of the public) should select an auditing firm with substantial
expertise in the operations of school districts of similar size and complexity.

In the end, the latter argument prevailed and the committee decided to recommend that
the District contract with Grave, Garrelts, Denham, and Bruce to be its external auditors.

169



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Selection of Insurance Consultant

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Selection of Insurance Consultant – the selection of a consultant for matters related

to property, casualty, liability, and workers compensation matters.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: For over 25 years, the District has engaged the services of the Harry A. Koch
Company (HAKCO) to serve as its insurance consultant. This year, as a matter of
business practice, competitive proposals were sought for this service.

An RFP for a three-year contract with annual extensions (to a maximum total of
six years) for insurance consulting services was issued. Two companies (Aon and
HAKCO) responded to the RFP.

(See the attached memo for additional information.)

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended (1) that approval be given to the selection of the Harry A. Koch
Company as the District’s insurance consultant for property, casualty, liability, and
workers compensation insurance, (2) that a consulting contract that is consistent
with the accepted proposal be drafted, and (3) that the associate superintendent for
general administration be authorized and directed to execute the consulting
contract and any other documents related to this matter.

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

170



MEMORANDUM

To: K. Lutz
From: K. Fossen
Re: Insurance Consultant
Date: January 9, 2006

On November 11, 2005 the District issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a consultant
for matters related to property, casualty, liability, and workers compensation insurance.
Notice of the RFP was published in the Daily Record. Two companies responded to the
RFP – The Harry A. Koch Company (HAKCO) and Aon.

In December, a committee composed of Steve Moore, Kirby Eltiste, Chris Hughes, and I
interviewed both of the firms. The following is a summary of our evaluation of the
proposals and our recommendation.

In evaluating the proposals, the committee gave consideration to: (1) the quality of the
presentations, (2) the support of the firm for the interests of the Millard Public Schools,
(3) the firms response to a “quiz”, (4) the comments from references, (5) the firms claims
processing services, (6) the ability of the firm to meet the District’s consulting needs, and
(7) the fee for such services.

1. Quality of Presentation

Since the consultant may, from time to time, be called upon to speak before the
Board and the public, consideration was given to the quality of the presentations.
After listening to the presentations of both firms, it was the opinion of the
committee that the stronger presentation was given by Aon.

2. Support of MPS Interests

Prior to the interviews, both firms were advised to be prepared to discuss their
support of the Millard Public Schools position with regard to the issue of district
boundaries. Aon’s offices are located within the Omaha Public Schools but it
does not provide any services to OPS. One of the members of the Aon team was
a mentor for two students at Millard South High School. HAKCO’s offices are
located within the Millard Public Schools but it serves as the insurance consultant
for OPS. HAKCO also mentioned its support of the MPS Foundation. Both
firms expressed support for the MPS position in the district boundaries issue. The
committee gave similar ratings to both firms on this standard.

3. “Quiz” on Contract Language

Each of the firms was given a “surprise quiz” at the interview. The quiz involved
a hypothetical statement from the District’s facility use contract. The statement

171



read as follows: "The user agrees to hold the district harmless for any loss
incurred during the time of the use."

In assessing the quality of the responses, the District was looking to see which
member of the team responded and what the response was. The best response
was to have the client contact person respond and address the following: (1) that
the contract language should include the word “defend," (2) that the contract
language should include the word "indemnify,” (3) that the insurer should be
required to provide liability insurance, (4) that the insurance coverage should
provide that the district be an additional named insured, and (5) that the user
should be required to provide a current certificate of insurance evidencing the
above requirements.

The person responding on behalf of Aon was not the client contact person but,
rather, a higher ranking member of the team. The response given addressed three
of the five issues. The person responding for HAKCO was the client contact
person and he addressed all five of the issues.

Based on the above responses the committee gave a higher ranking to HAKCO.

4. Responses from References

The references contacted for both firms were very positive. Thus, the committee
gave the highest rating to both firms.

5. Claims Processing Services

HAKCO (the District’s current consultant) provides claims processing for all of
the District’s property, casualty, and liability claims. The District sends an e-mail
(or fax) with the known information and HAKCO processes the claims with the
insurance carriers, maintains documentation of the reporting, and conducts follow
up when necessary.

Aon reported that they prefer that the client report claims directly to the insurance
carriers. When it was explained how the District’s claims were currently handled
by HAKCO, Aon agreed that they could (and would) provide the same service if
requested.

In light of the above, the committee ranked HAKCO above Aon.

6. Capabilities of Firm to Meet MPS Needs

It was apparent that both firms were of sufficient size and expertise the meet the
demands of a school district the size of MPS. Therefore, the committee gave both
firms the highest rating.

172



7. Fees for Consulting Services

The annual fee for HAKCO was $ 40,500 with a CPI increase in the outer years.
The annual fee for Aon was $ 50,000. Both companies bid their fees based upon
placing the District’s insurance “net of commissions.” In other words, they would
receive no commissions on the District’s insurance policies.

It should be noted that insurance brokers can also receive “profit sharing”
(sometimes referred to as “contingent compensation”). Profit sharing is a
contingent payment the brokerage firm may receive from insurance carriers (not
paid by the District) if it meets certain annual targets with regard to the total
volume of business placed with the carrier. This would include all of the clients
of the broker (not just MPS). The profit sharing is also contingent upon the
claims history of the policies placed.

Aon does not participate in “profit sharing” with carriers. HAKCO does. Our
RFP and our past practices do not preclude participation of the consultant in these
contingent incentive programs due to the fact that the payment received is not
directly related to MPS, but rather, is a total volume of business conducted on
behalf of all the broker’s clients. (One would assume that brokers participating in
these programs take this into consideration when submitting their fee proposals.)

In the end, the committee gave the nod on this issue to HAKCO because of the
lower annual fee.

In summary, the committee rated the firms as follows on a scale of 1-5 (with “5” being
high):

Review Criteria Aon HAKCO

Quality of Presentation 5 4
Support of MPS Interests 4 4
“Quiz” on Contract Language 3 5
Responses from References 5 5
Claims Processing Services 4 5
Capabilities of Firm to Meet MPS Needs 5 5
Fees for Consulting Services 4 5

TOTAL 30 33

In light of the above, the recommendation of the committee is to continue with the Harry
A. Koch Company (HAKCO) as the District insurance consultant for property, casualty,
liability, and workers compensation.

173



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item: Selection of Employee Benefits Consultant 
 
Meeting Date: January 16, 2006 
 
Department: Human Resources 
 
Title & Brief 
Description: Recommendation to select SilverStone Group as the District’s Consultant for Employee 

Benefits 
 
Action Desired: Approval 
 
Background: In November 2005 the District issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for matters related to 

employee benefits.  Letters were sent to:  AON, MetLife, Milliman, Garvey & Associates, 
Harry A. Koch Co., National Insurance Services, Frank Berlin and Associates, Gallagher 
Benefit Services, Holmes Murphy & Associates (HMI), and SilverStone Group.  Proposals 
were received from the Berlin, Gallagher, HMI, and SilverStone. 

 
 Based upon an analysis of services provided for the fee charged, Holmes Murphy and 

SilverStone were interviewed in December.  The interview committee members were Steve 
Moore, Ken Fossen, Kirby Eltiste, and Chris Hughes.  The committee considered the 
experience of the company and its representatives, the availability and quality of compliance 
information and services, the ability to analyze loss data and provide cost/benefit analysis for 
benefit plan design changes, employee communication assistance and fees.  SilverStone’s fees 
are $40,000 and HMI’s are $39,000; each charges an additional $10,000 to do a full Medical 
Plan Market analysis (putting the health plan administration out for bid). 

 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended (1) that approval be given to the selection of SilverStone Group as the 

District’s employee benefits consultant, (2) that a contract consistent with the accepted 
proposal be drafted, and (3) that the Associate Superintendent for Human Resources or 
designee be authorized and directed to execute the employee benefits contract and any other 
documents related to this matter. 

 
 
Timeline: Immediate 
 
Responsible Person: Steve Moore, Director Employee Relations 
 
Superintendent's 
Approval: ______________________________ 
 

174



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item: Selection of Retirement Benefits Consultant 
 
Meeting Date: January 16, 2006 
 
Department: Human Resources 
 
Title & Brief 
Description: Recommendation to select Citizens Bank and Trust as the District’s Consultant for Retirement 

Benefits 
 
Action Desired: Approval 
 
Background: In November 2005 the District issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for matters related to 

employee retirement benefits (403b and 457).  Letters were sent to:  AON, MetLife, 
Milliman, Garvey & Associates, Harry A. Koch Co., National Insurance Services, Frank 
Berlin and Associates, Gallagher Benefit Services, Holmes Murphy & Associates (HMI), 
SilverStone Group, Union Bank and Trust, Great Western Bank, Mutual of Omaha, First 
National Bank, Broker’s Benefit Management, and Citizen’s Bank and Trust.  Proposals were 
received from Broker’s Benefit Management, Citizens Bank and Trust, First National Bank, 
and Gallagher. 

 
 Based upon an analysis of services provided for the fee charged, Broker’s Benefit 

Management, and Citizens Bank and Trust were interviewed in December.  The interview 
committee members were Steve Moore, Ken Fossen, Kirby Eltiste, and Chris Hughes.  The 
committee considered the experience of the company and its representatives, the availability 
and quality of compliance enforcement, common remitter and record keeping services, on-line 
employee communication and enrollment, ability of employees to continuing using personal 
financial advisors and fees.  Citizens Bank and Trust was the only proposal received reflecting 
the ability to perform the services requested.  The fees are $3.00 per month per participant in 
the 403(b) plan and $150 per hour for additional services. 

 
 
Recommendation: It is recommended (1) that approval be given to the selection of Citizens Bank and Trust, 

Maryville, Missouri as the District’s employee retirement benefits consultant, (2) that a 
contract consistent with the accepted proposal be drafted, and (3) that the Associate 
Superintendent for Human Resources or designee be authorized and directed to execute the  
retirement benefits contract and any other documents related to this matter. 

 
 
Timeline: Immediate 
 
Responsible Person: Steve Moore, Director Employee Relations 
 
Superintendent's 
Approval: ______________________________ 
 

175



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: Personnel items: (1) New Hires, (2) Amended Contract, (3)
Resignations, (4) Rescission of Leave of Absence, and (5)
Vesp.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________

176



January 16, 2006

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE

Recommend: the following teachers be hired:

1. Renee Broesch – BA – Peru State College. Chapter 1 Preschool teacher at Morton Elementary
School for the 2005/06.

2. Melissa Hoddel – BA – Nebraska Wesleyan, Lincoln, NE. Montessori teacher at Norris
Elementary School for the 2006/07.

3. Susan Waldron – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Family Consumer Science teacher
(short-term) at West High School for the 2005/06.

4. Melissa Marquardt – BA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Kindergarten teacher (short-term)
at Black Elk Elementary School for the 2005/06.

5. Rebecca Behrendt – BA – College of St. Mary. Language Arts teacher at Russell Middle School
for the 2005/06.

6. Ashleigh Morris – BA – Colorado College, Colorado Springs, CO. Foreign Language teacher
with building to be determined for the 2006/07.

177



January 16, 2006

AMENDMENT TO CONTINUING CONTRACTS

Recommend: amendment to the following contracts:

1. Terry Dischler – Elementary Counselor at Montclair Elementary School. Amend
contract from 50% to 70%.

2. Amanda Hegge – Currently on Leave of Absence and taking a Resource Teacher
position at Reeder Elementary. Amend contract from 100% to 50%.

178



January 16, 2006

RESCISSION OF LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Recommend: the following leave of absence be rescinded:

1. Amanda Hegge requested a leave of absence for the 2005/06 school year. She would like
to rescind this request to take a part-time resource position at Reeder Elementary School.

179



January 16, 2006

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: the following resignations be accepted:

1. Ann Huxtable-Scates – Media Specialist at Hitchcock Elementary School. She is resigning due to
personal reasons. Resignation is effective December 22, 2005.

180



 January 16, 2006 
 

Voluntary Early Separation 
 
 
 
Recommend: The following qualified candidates be approved to participate in the District’s Voluntary 

Early Separation Program (The Board previously approved 3 applications for 2006): 
 
 
 
 
Name Position School Years of Credited Service
 
 
 
Mary Morrissey Grade 5 Teacher Black Elk 27 
 
Robert Wennstedt PE Teacher South High 27 
 
Phil Koch Principal Kiewit Middle 33 
 
Sheila Pedersen Language Arts Teacher North High 25 
 
Charice Nyffeler Teacher on Leave Kiewit Middle 19 
 
Dana S Dodd Grade Three Teacher Wheeler 25 
 
Dan Hansen Industrial Tech Teacher Andersen Middle 31 
 
Jeanne Backlund Family Consumer Sci Tchr Central Middle 17 
 
Terry Butler Science Teacher Andersen Middle 20 
 
 
 
 
 

181



182



183



184



185



186



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Construction Report

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Construction Report – A report from the District’s construction management firm

with regard to the progress on projects related to the 2005 bond issue.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: The District has engaged the services of Magnum Resources, Inc. (RMI) to act as
the construction manager for the District’s construction/renovation projects related
to the 2005 bond issue.

Don Mohlman (RMI) will be present at the meeting to present the construction
update (see attached) and to answer questions.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Don Mohlman (RMI) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General
Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

187



January 2006
Vol. 7

188



Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 7
January 2006

Index

I. Executive Summary Page 1 - 2

 Administrative Overview
 Project(s) Overview
 Budget Overview

II. Project Status Report Page 3 - 5

 Buell Stadium
 South High School
 North High School
 West High School
 Alternative High School
 Beadle Middle School
 Elementary #24
 Elementary #25
 Ackerman Elementary

III. Master Control Budget Page 6 - 7

 Control Budget Summary
 Detailed Project Summary

IV. Master Control Schedule

 Project Milestone Schedule Page 8

189



1

Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 7
January 2006

Executive Summary

Administrative Overview

 Continuation of weekly meetings with the Bond Committee consisting of Ken Fossen,
Mark Feldhausen, Ed Rockwell, Kim Thompson, Bob Snowden, Don Mohlman,
Randy Schroeder, and Ron Hager.

 South HS and North HS are presently out for bid.

 Contract documents are being completed for West HS.

 Design Development for Ackerman and Beadle is pending final approval.

 There has been no on-site construction progress the last month; pending spring
weather and upcoming projects currently scheduled for bid and contract award.

Project(s) Overview

 Buell Stadium –Pending spring completion for the Track Timing System and a
potential separate project for practice field grading to comply with state meet
requirements for discuss and shot-put.

 South High School: Phase 1 –Complete

 South High School: Phase 2 –Bid date of January 24th. Award date February 13th.

 North High School –Bid date of February 7th. Award date March 6th (concurrent
with West HS).

190



2

 West High School –Bid date of February 21st. Award date March 6th (concurrent
with North HS).

 Alternative High School –Site selection is in progress by the District.

 Beadle Middle School –Design Development is in progress.

 Elementary #24 –Final plat approval is scheduled for January 31st. General
Construction has been awarded to ConStruct Inc. with a spring start anticipated.

 Elementary #25 –Design Development approval is scheduled for January 16th.
Contract Documents will continue to be prepared by the architect with bidding
deferred until the fall of 2007; or sooner if requested by the District.

 Ackerman Elementary –Design Development approval is scheduled for January
16th with bids anticipated to be received in April or May.

Budget Overview

 No change

191



3

Millard Public Schools
Construction Progress Report No. 7
January 06

Project Status Report

HIGH SCHOOLS

 Buell Stadium –DLR Group / Nemaha Landscaping / Dactronics
o Track timing system is scheduled for completion on/or before March 31st (first

track meet is April 4th)

 South High School –DLR Group
o Bid date of January 24, 2006
o Anticipated award date of February 13, 2006

 North High School –Schemmer Associates
o Bid date of February 07, 2006
o Anticipated award date of March 06, 2006

 West High School –Prochaska Associates
o Contract Document Phase
o Board approval of Construction Documents January 16, 2006
o Anticipated bid date February 21, 2006
o Anticipated award date of March 06, 2006

 Alternative High School - BCDM
o Tentative schedule for project implementation is 4th quarter 2006
o Site selection is in progress by District

MIDDLE SCHOOL

 Beadle Middle School - BCDM
o Anticipated approval for Design Development is February 20, 2006
o Anticipated occupancy in fall of 2007

192



4

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

 Elementary #24 –Schemmer Associates / Heimes Excavating / ConStruct, Inc.
o Pre-grading work completed by Heimes before snowfall
o Verification survey completed for Pre-grading
o Final Plat by City Council scheduled for January 31, 2006
o Contract for Public Improvements awarded to Heimes
o Contract for General Construction awarded to ConStruct Inc.
o Anticipated spring start up.

Elementary #24 @ 198th Street looking South –January 04, 2006

193



5

 Elementary #25 –DLR Group
o Pre-grading has been completed by the Developer
o Completed pre-grading compliance survey with DLR Group
o Site utilities and street paving anticipated to be completed by Developer in

early Summer of 2006
o Board presentation for approval of Design Development scheduled for

January 16, 2006

Elementary #25 Building location looking South –January 04, 2006

 Ackerman Elementary –Schemmer Associates
o Board presentation for approval of Design Development scheduled for

January 16, 2006.

194



 

Millard Public Schools
01.16.06

 Original Budget  Current Budget  Total 
 01.00.05.00 Variance

 2005 Bond Issue Funding 
Land

Land Cost 3,750,270      3,750,270      -              
Feasibility Study 25,500           25,500           -              

Technology 20,000,000    20,000,000    -              
-              

Construction -              
Contractor -              

General 42,707,291    42,410,035    297,256      
Hazardous Material 472,500         442,500         30,000        
District Procured

SHS mtl drs & frms 3,198             (3,198)         
Buell Timing System 73,180           (73,180)       

-                 -              
Consultant

Project Mgt 854,146         973,600         (119,454)     
Architect 3,278,173      3,130,416      147,757      
Environmental -                 30,000           (30,000)       
Survey 300,333         300,333         -              
Soils -                 -              
Testing -                 -              

Spcl Insp -                 -              
Conductivity -                 -              

Commissioning -                 -              
HVAC 107,396         107,396         -              
Roofing -                 -              

Support Costs -                 -              
Builders Risk -                 -                 -              
Printing 125,534         125,534         -              
Software Platform -                 85,000             (85,000)       
Reimbursable -                 -                 -              

Constructware 10,000             (10,000)       
Advertising for bids -                 
Buell Stadium Equip -                 25,000           (25,000)       

Contingency 2,328,588      2,328,588      -             
PM Award (86,954)            

Addit'l Services (32,500)            
AE Award 268,061           

Addit'l Services (120,304)          
Constructware (85,000)            

Reimbursable (10,000)            
Buell

Award 253,899           
Equipment (25,000)            
Timing System (73,180)            
Prev Change Orders (72,920)          

South HS: Ph1
Prev Change Orders (168)               

Elem 24
Award 113,247           

Additional Funding 1,877,275        

Furniture / Fixture / Equipment -                 
Moveable Furnishings 1,311,307      1,311,307      -              
Moveable Equipment 219,291         219,291         -              
Comp; Phones; Copiers; Fax 2,192,015      2,192,015      -              

Regulatory Fees / Assessments 327,656         327,656         -              
-             

78,000,000    79,877,275    129,181    

 Additional Funding 
Buell Stadium Grants 74,471                    
HVAC at South High School 1,802,804      

79,877,275    Control Budget  Summary 011606

6

195



Millard Public Schools
01.16.06

 Original Budget  Ackerman  Elementary 24  Elementary 25  Beadle MS  North HS 
 South HS 
Phase 2 

 South HS 
Phase 1  West HS  Alt HS  Buell Stadium Future HS  Current Budget  Total 

07.150.05.01 07.162.05.01 07.163.05.01 07.250.05.01 07.342.05.01 07.340.05.02 07.340.05.01 07.344.05.01 07.333.05.01 07.300.05.01 07.346.05.01  01.00.05.00 Variance
 2005 Bond Issue Funding 
Land

Land Cost 3,750,270        441,300       441,300       661,770       2,205,900    3,750,270        -             
Feasibility Study 25,500             4,500           4,500           6,500           10,000         25,500             -             

Technology 20,000,000      20,000,000      -             
-             

Construction -             
Contractor -             

General 42,707,291      2,423,635    6,470,500    6,474,000    2,521,365    5,600,195    5,327,802    80,168         5,474,075    6,900,000    1,138,295    -               42,410,035      297,256      
Hazardous Material 472,500           35,000         25,000         289,284       93,216         442,500           30,000        
District Procured

SHS mtl drs & frms 3,198           3,198               (3,198)        
Buell Timing System 73,180         73,180             (73,180)      

-                   -             
Consultant

Project Mgt 854,146           89,000         90,000         108,700       107,800       128,200       160,700       128,200       123,000       38,000         -               973,600           (119,454)    
Architect 3,278,173        201,889       290,343       380,000       187,000       466,497       595,304       425,883       518,000       65,500         3,130,416        147,757      
Environmental -                   30,000         30,000             (30,000)      
Survey 300,333           19,416         50,350         49,202         19,162         35,000         35,000         39,763         52,440         300,333           -             
Soils -                   -             
Testing -                   -             

Spcl Insp -                   -             
Conductivity -                   -             

Commissioning -                   -             
HVAC 107,396           7,766           20,140         20,069         7,816           8,548           4,697           16,970         21,390         -               107,396           -             
Roofing -                   -             

Support Costs -                   -             
Builders Risk -                   -                   -             
Printing 125,534           15,000         15,000         17,000         12,000         15,000         15,000         16,500         17,000         3,034           -               125,534           -             
Software Platform -                   85,000             (85,000)      
Reimbursable -                   -                   -             

Constructware 10,000             (10,000)      
Advertising for bids -                   
Buell Stadium Equip -                   25,000         25,000             (25,000)      

Contingency 2,328,588        2,328,588        -             
PM Award (86,954)            

Addit'l Services (32,500)        (32,500)            
AE Award 268,061           

Addit'l Services (120,304)      (120,304)          
Constructware (85,000)            

Reimbursable (10,000)            
Buell

Award 253,899           
Equipment (25,000)            
Timing System (73,180)            
Prev Change Orders (72,920)            

South HS: Ph1
Prev Change Orders (168)                 

Elem 24
Award 113,247           

Additional Funding 1,802,804    74,471         1,877,275        

Furniture / Fixture / Equipment -                   
Moveable Furnishings 1,311,307        -               269,933       265,434       103,376       113,037       62,115         214,512       282,900       -               1,311,307        -             
Moveable Equipment 219,291           14,621         37,917         37,549         14,624         15,991         26,819         31,750         40,020         -               219,291           -             
Comp; Phones; Copiers; Fax 2,192,015        85,020         384,000       375,492       199,188       193,025       106,050       366,240       483,000       -               2,192,015        -             

Regulatory Fees / Assessments 327,656           24,033         62,324         61,503         23,953         26,196         14,393         49,704         65,550         327,656           -             
-           

78,000,000      2,915,380    8,136,307    8,234,749    3,196,284    6,626,689    8,287,164    206,582       6,763,597    9,171,570    1,417,480    2,215,900    79,877,275      129,181      

 Additional Funding 
Buell Stadium Grants 74,471                    
HVAC at South High School 1,802,804        

79,877,275      Control Budget Detailed Summary 011606

7

196



Jan Feb March

Bond Committee Meetings 5, 12, 19, 26 2, 9, 16, 23 2, 9, 16, 23, 30
Board Committee of the Whole Meetings 23 13 13
Board Meetings 16 20 6, 20

Project Receive Bids Project

Commencement Bond Committee Bond Committee School Board Bond Committee School Board Bond Committee School Board Completion

Elem Schools
Ackerman 3-Aug-05 16-Nov-05 12-Jan-06 16-Jan-06 09-Feb-06 20-Feb-06 18-Apr-06 20-Apr-06 01-May-06 01-Aug-07

Elementary #24

Overlot Grading 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 14-Sep-05 15-Sep-05 19-Sep-05 15-Feb-06

Public Improv. 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 25-Oct-05 27-Oct-05 07-Nov-05 01-Jun-06

Building 08-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 25-Oct-05 27-Oct-05 07-Nov-05 01-Jun-07

Elementary #25 19-Aug-05 17-Nov-05 15-Dec-05 16-Jan-06 09-Feb-06 20-Feb-06 01-Jun-08

Middle Schools
Beadle MS 12-Dec-05 09-Feb-06 20-Feb-06 01-Jun-07

High Schools
Buell Stadium 28-Aug-05

North HS 21-Jul-05 01-Sep-05 12-Sep-05 01-Dec-05 19-Dec-05 07-Feb-06 09-Feb-05 06-Mar-06 01-Jul-07

South HS

Phase I 2005 26-May-05 06-Jun-05 07-Jun-05 09-Jun-05 14-Jun-05 05-Aug-05

Phase II - 2006 14-Jul-05 11-Aug-05 15-Aug-05 20-Oct-05 21-Nov-05 24-Jan-06 26-Jan-06 13-Feb-06 01-Jul-07

West HS 11-Aug-05 06-Oct-05 17-Oct-05 29-Dec-05 16-Jan-06 21-Feb-06 23-Feb-06 06-Mar-06 01-Jul-07

Alternative HS 1-Jul-06 01-Jun-08

NOTE: Dates shown in light blue/italics are tentative projections to be confirmed; dates shown in dark blue/italics are Board action dates

Design Development Contract Documents Contract AwardProject
Program /

Schematic Design

Board Schedule 011606

8

197



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly Construction Report (Not Bond Issue Related)

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Quarterly Construction Report – A report of the on-going progress on significant

construction projects (other than bond issue projects) in the District.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: n/a

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) and Ed Rockwell (Gen.
Mgr. for Support Services)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

198



1

Millard Public Schools Project Management
Construction Report to the Board of Education

Board meeting date: January 16, 2006 For quarter ending: December 31, 2005

Location: Russell Middle Project Manager: Ed Rockwell
West High (combined contract)

Project Title: Running Track Resurfacing Bid award: $118,543
Architect / Engineer: BCDM Change Orders: 0 $ 0,000 (0.0%)
General Contractor: Midwest Tennis & Track Amended Contract: $118,543

Description of work:
Russell – The existing resilient surfacing was removed and the underlying asphalt surface was repaired,
sealed and re-striped.

WHS - The existing resilient surfacing was removed and the underlying asphalt surface was repaired. A
new resilient surface (similar to those recently installed at NHS & SHS) and new striping was applied.

Status of progress:
The contractor is fully completed at Russell Middle. At West High, the contractor completed removal of
excess resilient surfacing material in early December. Corrections of the paint striping remain. Full
completion and project close-out is anticipated in March, 2006. A 10% contract retainage is held by the
District.

New Striping – Fall 2005 Excess resilient material on surface
(has since been corrected)

199



2

Location: Central Middle Project Manager: Kim Thompson
Project Title: Retaining Wall & Fence Bid awards: $ 26,750
Architect / Engineer: BCDM Change Orders: 2 $ 1,557 (5.8%)
General Contractor: Prairie Construction / S&W Fence Amended Contract: $ 28,307

Description of work:
This project involves the replacement of fencing, construction of a retaining wall and surface inlet
improvements. The goals are to improve drainage, minimize soil erosion and solve fence issues.

Status of progress:
The project was originally issued as an R.F.P. last spring, with no responses. The architect re-configured
our approach and we negotiated with contractors to complete the project in late November.

Before: Spring 2005

After: November 2005

200



3

Capital Improvement Projects for 2006

First presented to the
Board Committee of the Whole

November 14, 2005

Discipline Sub Group Location Project Description
Estimated

Project Cost

Civil Athletics Beadle M S Running track: Remove & recondition remaining asphalt surface, re-stripe 21,645

Irrigation High Schools (all) Irrigation systems: Remote monitoring and management 50,310

Paving Rohwer Replace 3,690 SF paving & curb at main drive, rout and seal all joints 49,916
Sandoz Remove and replace most existing paving, provide 31 additional parking stalls 315,353
West H S Construct 4,240 LF of 5' public sidewalk along 176th Ave., Y St. & 180th St. 136,130

Architectural Athletics Buell Stadium Construct storage building for turf maintenance and SHS track equipment 252,646

Doors-Windows Multiple Locations Replace rusted window frames, door frames and doors 150,000

Flooring Ezra Carpeting: Replace throughout building 107,402
Kiewit M S Vinyl floor tile: Replace w/carpet in all corridors, repair tile in cafeteria 120,590
Neihardt Carpeting: Replace throughout building 154,131
Willowdale Carpeting: Replace throughout building 103,467

Painting Bryan Repaint CMU walls in gym floor to ceiling, block graphics 5,265
Cather Repaint CMU walls in gym floor to ceiling, block graphics 5,265

Roofing Central M S Re-roof: Phase I-06 of multiple 538,200
North M S Re-roof: Phase III of III 319,900

Mechanical Plumbing Andersen M S Wash fountains (6): Replace with solid-surface at all student restrooms 25,740

HVAC Andersen M S Install de-humidification equipment at roof top make-up air units 435,240
Cottonwood Convert roof top units from pnuematic to DDC 29,250
Rockwell Heat pumps, controls and piping improvements Phase II of II 159,237

Electrical Fire Alarm Morton Replace all fire detection and notification devices throughout building 28,665

Estimated sub-total construction costs & fees 3,008,352
10% Contingency 300,835

Estimated total 2006 project requests $3,309,187

(Incl Fees & Testing)

Revisions: RMS sidewalks deleted from list (to be built by Douglas County, funded by District)
WHS sidewalks construction cost estimate reduced (deleted Q St. scope)
Sandoz paving project budget increased $60,000 for 31 additional parking stalls
Buell Storage Building size and budget reduced during Design Development
Cost sub-total, contingency and total amounts revised accordingly
11-14-05 Est Total: $3,426,145 - Current Est Total: $3,309,187 = net reduction of $116,958

Summary Status of Projects:
 Architects, engineers and consultants have been engaged
 Design development is in progress on all projects
 Coordination with all District summer programs is complete
 Will seek Board approval of bid awards in February, March and April
 Earliest projects will be completed before June 1, 2006
 All others are scheduled for completion July 31, 2006

201



4

Location: Russell Middle - West High Project Manager: Ed Rockwell
Project Title: Sidewalk Additions Bid award: $ TBD
Architect / Engineer: BCDM Change Orders: 0 $ TBD
General Contractor: TBD Amended Contract: $ TBD

Design Development Notes:
Within a few days after our presentation of the Summer 2006 Projects to the Board on November 14,
2005, we learned that the City of Omaha and Douglas County were finalizing plans to improve Q Street
from 156th west to 180 th Street. On December 21, 2005, Ken Fossen, Ed Rockwell and Tom Bentley (of
BCDM) met with the Douglas County Engineer and City of Omaha Public Works officials to discuss
impact and coordination issues. The result of this meeting produced an understanding among all parties
as follows:

1) All sidewalks adjoining the south side of Q Street at both the Russell Middle School and West
High School sites will be constructed by Douglas County’s contractor in 2007-2008. The County
Engineer will configure the bid documents to produce separate pricing for the portions of
sidewalk to be funded by the District. The sidewalk at the east side of 180th Street, from the south
edge of the OPPD facility to the north drive to West High on 180th Street will also be constructed
by Douglas County’s contractor and funded by the District.

2) At Russell Middle School, there is no other District sidewalk construction required.
3) At West High School only, the District will design and build sidewalks along the east, south and

west sides of the property, as presented to the Board on November 14, 2005. This work is to be
completed by August 1, 2006.

4) The parties will need to enter into a formal, interlocal agreement to be reviewed by District’s legal
counsel and submitted for Board approval.

5) The original cost estimate for both RMS and WHS was presented to the Board at $277,795 on
November 14, 2005. The revised construction cost estimate for the sidewalks to be built directly
by the District at WHS during Summer 2006 is $116,350.

RMS (looking west along Q St.) WHS (looking northeast along Y St.)

202



5

Russell Middle School

203



6

West High School

204



7

Location: Sandoz Elementary Project Manager: Ed Rockwell
Project Title: Paving Replacement Bid awards: $ TBD
Architect / Engineer: Lamp-Rynearson Change Orders: 2 $ TBD (0.0%)
General Contractor: TBD Amended Contract: $ TBD

Design Development Notes:
As presented to the Board on November 14, 2005, there is a need to replace much of the existing pavement and to
provide additional parking capacity for staff. Although still early in design development, our engineer has found
practical space for 31 additional cars. This increased capacity (from 43 to 74 cars) will enable all staff, including
itinerants, to park on-site. The budget impact of the additional parking has yet to be fully developed, but is
expected to add approximately $60,000 to the original cost estimate. This estimated increase is reflected in the
previous spreadsheet.

Area to be converted to additional staff parking (former kindergarten playground)

205



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly M&O Report

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Quarterly M&O Report – The quarterly report from Sodexho regarding the District’s

Maintenance and Operations.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: n/a

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Bob Snowden, General Manager (Sodexho) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent
(General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

206



Millard Public Schools
Executive Summary

Quarterly Review
October - December 2005

I. Accomplishments

MAINTENANCE HIGHLIGHTS
 Several projects were completed by the Maintenance Department during the quarter.

Below are some of the highlights:
o At West High, one pool compressor was repaired, and another one replaced.
o Boiler controls were upgraded at Aldrich.
o At Black Elk, replaced four fan-powered boxes to new controls and programs.
o Replaced compressors at Kiewit and North Middle.
o Replaced two booster heaters in the dishwasher at Ackerman.
o Carpentry repair work was completed due to water damage at 2 portable

classrooms at Abbott and Wheeler. Additionally, replaced the old domestic
hot water heaters.

o At all Middle Schools, the electrician re-worked electrical to the serving areas
and installed new lighting and plug-ins for new equipment.

o A handrail was installed at Neihardt due to a student’s needs.
o The dishwasher at North Middle was rebuilt.
o A steam coil was replaced at Central Middle.

 Due to continued problems with the hot water holding tank at North High,
replacement was contracted out and completed over the Holiday Break. The tanks
were replaced with higher efficiency heaters and tanks.

 Preventative Maintenance was completed on the following grounds equipment:
o Three 16-foot mowers
o Seven 72” mowers
o Two 60” mowers
o One 36” mower
o Three 21” mowers
o 62 snow blowers

 Indoor Air Quality issues were reported and investigated at the following locations:
o Russell Middle
o Ezra
o South High
o North High

 Due to Indoor Air Quality issues at Ezra, a kindergarten room was thoroughly
inspected.

207



I. Accomplishments (continued)

 The flooring in the kindergarten restrooms at Ezra were replaced due to continued
problems in the area.

 At Wheeler, carpet is being removed from around the drinking fountains and replaced
with tile to remedy the carpet issues we are having with them constantly being wet.
Three of the five areas were completed over the Holiday Break, and the remainder
will be completed in the first part of 2006.

 Henry Rohwer, with the assistance of the Custodial Managers, did ten tours with
Christine Stewart of the Douglas County Health Department regarding the Tools for
Schools program. Tours were conducted at the following locations:

o Andersen
o Echo Hills
o Reeder
o Russell
o Ackerman
o Cody
o South High
o Ezra
o West High
o Neihardt
o Wheeler

 With the addition of the electrician to the Mechanical Department, Steve Laire, Henry
Rohwer and Bob Snowden continued forward with reorganizing the Department.
Changes were made in an effort to better serve the schools with more consistent
‘teams’ made up of a Mechanical Technician and a Preventative Maintenance
Engineer. There will be 4 of these teams covering the Middle and Elementary
Schools, along with the Chief Engineer assisting the High and Middle Schools
Building Engineers. Below is the new organization chart:

208



I. Accomplishments (continued)

GROUNDS HIGHLIGHTS

 Tree and shrub trimming is being done District wide. We were approximately 85%
completed by the end of December, and plan on 100% completion by the end of
January.

 Snow removal operations took place 3 times and sanding 6 times.
 The grounds crew rebuilt the long jump pits at Kiewit.
 Concrete repair work was done by both contractors and the grounds crews at the

following locations:
o Completed by MPS Grounds:

 Bryan
 Norris
 Rohwer
 Rockwell
 Wheeler

o Completed by Contractors:
 South High
 Andersen Middle
 Central Middle
 Kiewit Middle
 North Middle
 Cather
 Sandoz

 With the 2005/2006 budget, an additional carpenter specializing in flooring was
budgeted for. Terry Haubold interviewed and selected a person for this position who
started in November. His primary function will be flooring projects to reduced
contractor costs, but will also assist in carpentry when flooring projects are not
needed, or cannot be completed due to school schedules.

 The grounds crews did spot mulching and wood chipping throughout the District
during the quarter.

 The crews completed the following on athletic fields during the quarter:
o Seeded all athletic fields not in use in September.
o Aerated all athletic fields not in use in September.
o Applied herbicide throughout the District during the quarter (did not apply to

fields in use during the quarter).
o Groomed and prepared Buell 17 times for football games.

 All irrigation systems were shut down and winterized for the season. Research was
done on irrigations management system to aid in the management of all High School
systems, and to reduce water consumption. Pricing is being sought out and
recommendations will be made on available systems during the first quarter.

209



I. Accomplishments (continued)

 The baseball infields were tilled at Abbott, Ackerman, Black Elk, Bryan, Cather,
Cody, Hitchcock, Morton, Neihardt, Norris, Rohwer and South High.

 Tree removal was completed by contractors on diseased or damaged trees at South
High and Andersen Middle. The MPS grounds crew removed and replaced a
diseased tree at Disney.

 A small retaining wall was installed on the west side of the hill at Buell to prevent
erosion.

CUSTODIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 During both the Fall and Holiday Breaks, the Custodial Department completed
project cleaning that included the following:

o Wall washing
o Counter and desk cleaning/disinfecting
o Carpet extraction
o Burnishing of hard surface flooring
o Window washing
o Project restroom cleaning
o Miscellaneous project cleaning in entryways, office areas, corridors and

classrooms.
 Diane Moore and Ian Leader continued to interview and recommend new hires for the

Custodial Department sub pool. In addition, Diane, Ian, Jim Cerveny and Gloria
Lincoln interviewed and filled open custodial positions throughout the quarter.

GENERAL HIGHLIGHTS
 Diane Moore and Bob Snowden met with Unisource on October 11th and 20th. The

first meeting was to discuss products and other services Unisource can provide. The
second meeting was to see an equipment demonstration at Andersen on a new carpet
cleaning technique/machine.

 Diane Moore and Bob Snowden met with representatives from Ecolab on October
20th to discuss the cleaning chemicals and floor finishes currently being used.

 The Custodial Department managers and Bob Snowden met with Craig Whaley on
October 31st to discuss facility use.

 Bob Snowden and Henry Rohwer met with Control Masters on November 8th to
discuss current projects and upcoming projects.

 Henry Rohwer, Steve Laire and Bob Snowden met with representatives from OPPD
to discuss energy consumption and other ways OPPD can assist MPS.

 Bob Snowden met with Dave Finney of Siemens on November 28th to discuss door
security access systems to better control daily access at North High.

210



I. Accomplishments (continued)

 Steve Laire and Henry Rohwer met several times to review and provide input for
HVAC systems for the additions and renovations to North High, South High,
Ackerman, as well as the new design for Elementary #25.

 Henry Rohwer, Gloria Lincoln, and Jim Cerveny accompanied Travels Insurance to
conduct inspections of Cody, Rohwer and Abbott.

 Steve Laire met with Specialized Products to discuss dehumidification systems for
HVAC.

 Steve Laire met with a representative from Echo to discuss light bulbs and ballasts.
 Steve Laire and Henry Rohwer met with Specialized Products to discuss filters.
 Steve Laire and Henry Rohwer met with United Rentals to discuss lifts they have

available to meet difficult situations.

II. Training

 Two employees were trained on Copeland Compressors in October. Total Training
Hours: 38

 Four new custodians were trained on proper chemical use and cleaning procedures:
Total Training Hours: 32

 128 Employees were trained on Fire Prevention Safety in October: Total Training
Hours: 30

 All custodians were trained on the proper clean-up procedures when handling vomit
due to the Noro Virus. Total Training Hours: 20

 144 employees were trained on “Slips, Trips, and Falls”: Total Training Hours: 36
 Twelve employees were trained on proper snow shoveling: Total Training Hours: 3

Training Period Total Hours
July – September 2005 205.25
October – December 2005 159.00

III. Quality and Productivity

MONTHLY CUSTODIAL INSPECTIONS
The monthly inspections of the buildings continued. Below are the results.

October 05

District Average 89.099%
High School 84.550%
Middle School 92.707%
Elementary/Other 88.791%

211



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

November 05

District Average 88.353%
High School 84.111%
Middle School 91.703%
Elementary/Other 88.070%

December 05

District Average 88.125%
High School 86.837%
Middle School 91.136%
Elementary/Other 87.578%

Below are the year-to-date results for the current school year, along with a comparison to
the previous school years.

Monthly Custodial Inspections
YTD 05-06 YTD 04-05 YTD 03-04

District Average 88.855% 88.515% 85.397%
High School 84.825% 87.716% 82.037%
Middle School 92.269% 88.395% 82.741%
Elementary/Other 88.532% 88.640% 86.443%

0

20

40

60

80

100

District High Middle Elementary

2003-2004

2004-2005

2005-2006

212



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

TEACHER SURVEYS – All Department Survey
The Teacher Surveys continued through the quarter. The surveys are on a scale of 1 to 5,
with 5 = Excellent, 3 = Average and 1 = Poor. Below are the results:

October 2005
(71 total surveys)

Overall Average Custodial Average Maintenance
Average

Grounds Average

District Average 4.13 4.08 4.24 4.01
High School 4.75 4.50 5.00 5.00
Middle School 4.58 4.56 4.72 4.26
Elementary School 3.89 3.84 3.96 3.88

November 2005
(69 total surveys)

Overall Average Custodial Average Maintenance
Average

Grounds Average

District Average 4.28 4.28 4.32 4.15
High School - - - -
Middle School 4.51 4.56 4.53 4.24
Elementary School 4.15 4.13 4.20 4.10

December 2005
(80 total surveys)

Overall Average Custodial Average Maintenance
Average

Grounds Average

District Average 4.14 4.13 4.17 4.06
High School - - - -
Middle School 4.30 4.30 4.33 4.18
Elementary School 4.07 4.07 4.10 4.02

Comparison of District Average and by Department
Number of

Surveys
District Average Custodial

Average
Maintenance

Average
Grounds
Average

2005-2006 YTD 470 4.16 4.11 4.23 4.14
2004-2005 YTD 1074 4.17 4.14 4.25 4.02
2003-2004 YTD 351 4.11 4.10 4.19 3.96

213



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

Comparison by School Type
High School Middle School Elementary School

2005-2006 YTD 3.97 4.51 4.15
2004-2005 YTD 4.09 4.49 4.04
2003-2004 YTD 3.98 4.32 4.13

3.6

3.8

4

4.2

4.4

4.6

High Middle Elementary

2003-2004

2004-2005

2005-5006

Below is a breakdown on how the teachers rated their school grounds. The District is
broken up into three grounds crews. Below are the results for 2005 Year to Date, as well
as Year to Date results for previous school years.

MAINTENANCE WORK ORDERS:
Below is a breakdown for work orders received, completed for the quarter, and still open
to date:

Received Completed Open
Grounds 203 264 67
Carpentry 474 510 133
Paint 57 71 50
Custodial 28 31 7
Flooring 24 7 31
Electrical 108 101 17
HVAC/Mechanical 1016 1006 377
Vehicle Mechanic 89 94 5
Miscellaneous 0 0 0
Total 1999 2084 687

Grounds Crew 1 Grounds Crew 2 Grounds Crew 3
2005-2006 YTD 4.28 4.10 4.10
2004-2005 YTD 4.07 3.96 4.05
2003-2004 YTD 4.12 3.87 4.00

214



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

Percentage of Open Work Orders by Department

Percentage
Grounds 9.8%
Carpentry 19.4%
Paint 7.3%
Custodial 1.0%
Flooring 4.5%
Electrical 2.5%
HVAC/Mechanical 54.9%
Vehicle Maintenance .6%
Miscellaneous 0

Percentage of Work Orders Received by Department

2.9%

1.2%

2.9%

1.4%

24.1%

10.4%

51.6%

5.5%

Grounds

Carpentry

Paint

Custodial

Flooring

Electrical

Mechanical

Vehicle

Below is a breakdown off all open work orders in the system by age (in days) through
12/31/05:

Days Open 0-1 2-3 4-7 8-14 15-21 22-28 29-60 61-90 90+
Grounds 4 0 1 1 1 1 4 4 49
Carpentry 17 5 7 18 12 7 22 13 32
Paint 2 2 1 2 2 2 3 7 29
Custodial 0 1 0 2 1 1 1 0 1
Flooring 0 0 2 1 4 2 7 2 13
Electrical 3 1 1 1 6 1 2 2 0
HVAC/Mechanical 28 17 15 18 28 13 42 40 176
Vehicle Mechanic 1 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 55 29 28 43 54 27 82 69 300

215



III. Quality and Productivity (continued)

PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE:
Below is a breakdown of all Preventative Maintenance work orders open and completed
for 2005.

Total Work
Orders

Open after
12/31/05

Total
Completed

3053 242 2811
100% 8% 92%

WORK ORDER HOURS:
Below is a breakdown of the amount of hours worked for all work orders submitted for
the period of October – December 2005: (Includes Grounds, Maintenance and
Custodial).

Hours
Elementary Schools 3993.00
Middle Schools 1559.00
High Schools 2034.00
Other 1260.25
District Wide 2943.50
Total 11789.75

CUSTODIAL VISITS:
(October – December 2005)

Inspections Completed 242
Principal Visits Completed 325

Total Site Visits Completed 1584

CUSTODIAL ABSENSES:

Hours %
Business and Emergency 324 8.0%
Bereavement 40 1.0%
Family Sick 248 6.1%
Jury Duty 0 0
Leave without Pay 270 6.7%
Sick 838 20.8%
Vacation 2316 57.4%
Total Absences 4036 100.0%
Percentage of Scheduled Work Absent 6.1%

216



IV. Employee Recognition Programs

 The Building of the Month for the Custodial Department continued through the
quarter and below are the winning schools:

October 2005 Building of the Month Schools:
Elementary Division: Hitchcock
Secondary Division: Beadle

November 2005 Building of the Month Schools:
Elementary Division: Abbott
Secondary Division: Russell

December 2005 Building of the Month Schools:
Elementary Division: Hitchcock
Secondary Division: Russell

Winning schools will receive certificates for their accomplishment as well as a plaque
to hang in their schools.

 The Employee of the Quarter program continued for the period of September –
December 2005. Managers are in the process of nominating and selecting winners
for the following the Grounds, Maintenance, Building Engineer and Custodial
Departments. Winners will be announced late January.

V. Goals

 Continue interviewing and hiring for all open positions.
 Select the Employees of the Quarter for October – December 2005.
 Terry Haubold, Bob Snowden, Kevin Becker and Randy Miller continue to discuss

future changes and organization of the Grounds Department to improve efficiency,
increase quality, and incorporate new buildings.

 Begin planning for projects for the Spring Break.
 Begin planning for the summer custodial, maintenance and grounds projects.
 Continue planning to improve ‘curb appeal’ at select sites. Continue the process of

developing landscaping plans throughout the District. Make plans for spring
plantings.

 Continue to monitor the MPS budget.
 Continue to assist with Bond Project planning as needed and attend the Bond

Committee Meetings weekly.
 Managers will continue to be involved in specific planning meetings regarding the

Bond Projects as well as the Capital Improvement Projects.

217



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Quarterly Food Service Report 
 
MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Quarterly Food Service Report – A report on the District’s Food Service program managed 

by ARAMARK. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval             Discussion             Information Only     x                                 .       
 
BACKGROUND: n/a 
 
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: n/a 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) and Jim Stilwell 

(ARAMARK‘s General Manager) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

218



 
January 8, 2006 
 
 
Dr. Ken Fossen 
Associate Superintendent 
Millard Public Schools 
 
Dear Dr. Fossen, 
Attached is the second quarter Board Report for your review.  As suggested, I have 
concentrated on the financial success we have achieved as partners. 
In addition to this financial summary, I wanted to update you on other aspects of our 
department: 

• Nutritional Policy: On January 6th, we opened – as required – breakfast programs 
in all high schools and the remaining 11 elementary buildings.  We now have this 
service available in all District Buildings.  At the time of writing this report, it is too 
early to gage the opening success of the program’s participation.  However, I can 
report that operationally, there were no flaws.  The only remaining requirement this 
year is the formal adoption of our Wellness Committee.  

• New Building Manager Training: During the last quarterly report, I spoke in detail 
of our new Building Manager training program(s).  To update you on their progress, 
we could not be more pleased.  They have progressed and grown into their roles. 
They’ve added new perspectives and are a large contributor to the success that is 
detailed in the body of this report. 

• ARAMARK Fresh Eyes: During this past quarter we were fortunate enough to have 
been selected for an ARAMARK Fresh Eyes.  During this process a group of 
ARAMARK front-line managers tour and survey our buildings.  They look at the 
department operationally and financially to uncover with their “fresh eyes” 
opportunities for improvement that I may have missed.  They offered wonderful 
suggestions, but also left very impressed with what we have accomplished. 

As always, your support of ARAMARK and the National School Lunch and Breakfast programs 
is greatly appreciated.  If there is anything else I can provide you, please do not hesitate to 
ask. 
 
Most Cordially, 
 
 
Jim Stilwell 
General Manager 
ARAMARK

219



Millard Food Service Financial Summary

SY2006 SY2005 DIFFERENCE GROWTH

1 Total Income 3,862,153.43$   3,466,041.96$   396,111.47$   11.4%
1A Cash Income (WinSnap) 3,098,110.75$         2,948,443.20$         149,667.55$                  5.1%

1B Federal Reimbursement Income 573,135.52$            492,304.76$            80,830.76$                    16.4%

1C State Reimbursement Income 5,722.90$                2,429.35$                3,293.55$                      135.6%

1D Contract Catering Sales 60,017.60$              10,219.04$              49,798.56$                    487.3%

1E Ad Hoc Catering Sales 24,336.80$              12,645.61$              11,691.19$                    92.5%

1F Vending Commissions 81,438.76$              -$                        81,438.76$                    n/a

1G Miscellaneous Sales (NHS Vending) 19,391.10$              -$                        19,391.10$                    n/a

2 ARAMARK Expenditures 1,963,009.70$   1,815,900.84$   147,108.86$   8.1%

2A Cost Of Sales 1,481,501.76$     1,383,320.38$     98,181.38$       7.1%
2B Management Labor 59,085.79$          74,218.05$          (15,132.26)$      -20.4%
2C Direct Expenses 346,613.07$        292,808.07$        53,805.00$       18.4%

312.00 Paper and Plastics 106,957.18$               130,154.89$               (23,197.71)$                   -17.8%
313.11 Waste Removal 175.70$                      467.50$                      (291.80)$                        -62.4%
314.22 Equipment Repairs 6,356.42$                   2,032.74$                   4,323.68$                      212.7%
314.99 Repair & Maint - Other 7,670.07$                   843.29$                      6,826.78$                      809.5%
315.19  Taxes and Licenses 6,861.29$                   9,060.60$                   (2,199.31)$                     -24.3%
316.01 Empl Veh-Opr+Rental 408.98$                      84.97$                       324.01$                         381.3%
317.00 General Insurance 3,558.89$                   3,089.05$                   469.84$                         15.2%
326.02 Telephone Expense 859.32$                      355.61$                      503.71$                         141.6%
329.04 Management Meeting 912.63$                      1,400.80$                   (488.17)$                        -34.8%
331.00 Office Supplies 3,755.16$                   966.91$                      2,788.25$                      288.4%
331.02 Postage Expense 150.00$                      35.43$                       114.57$                         323.4%
331.04 EDP Supplies 2,971.45$                   1,869.00$                   1,102.45$                      59.0%
331.21 Freight Expenses 2,032.34$                   126.28$                      1,906.06$                      1509.4%
331.31 Airborne Air Freight 125.54$                      94.60$                       30.94$                           32.7%
331.75 Technology Cost - Software 12,229.95$                 305.00$                      11,924.95$                    3909.8%
332.00 Adv & Promotion 11,128.78$                 506.25$                      10,622.53$                    2098.3%
332.10 Flowers & Decorations 219.56$                      447.64$                      (228.08)$                        -51.0%
335.00 Professional Service 973.51$                      27.00$                       946.51$                         3505.6%
344.95 Security Services 15,349.50$                 20,983.30$                 (5,633.80)$                     -26.8%
345.01 Uniforms and Laundry 28,735.06$                 12,182.93$                 16,552.13$                    135.9%
345.10 Replacements 29,006.36$                 2,786.36$                   26,220.00$                    941.0%
345.13 Delivery Expense 102,730.26$               96,322.26$                 6,408.00$                      6.7%
345.99 Other Operating Exp 2,945.12$                   1,769.92$                   1,175.20$                      66.4%
Computer System 500.00$                      -$                           500.00$                         n/a

Management Fees 75,809.08$          65,554.34$          10,254.74$       15.6%

3 District Expenditures 1,577,675.93$   1,494,648.04$   83,027.89$     5.6%
3A LABOR: Salary Accrual 62,181.52$              82,166.43$              (19,984.91)$                   -24.3%

3B LABOR:  Wages and Benefits 1,341,875.80$         1,253,629.12$         88,246.68$                    7.0%
3C TRANSFER: Custodial 62,805.76$              58,503.20$              4,302.56$                      7.4%
3D TRANSFER: Paraprofessional 78,177.56$              70,788.96$              7,388.60$                      10.4%
3E Other District Expense 30,314.95$              29,560.33$              754.62$                         2.6%
3F Merchant Fees 2,320.34$                2,320.34$                      n/a

4 321,467.80$      155,493.08$      165,974.72$   106.7%

5 185,407.59$      75,555.52$        109,852.07$   145.4%

6 136,060.22$      79,937.56$        56,122.66$     70.2%NET RETURN

Year to Date

GROSS RETURN

Building Transfers

220



Financial Summary 
Gross Return can be defined as the expectation of the Millard Food Service to cover all of the direct and the 
indirect costs associated with the department.  To meet this expectation, the return would have to be upwards of 
$775k1 for the school year.  Net Return would be the monies left over after the indirect allocations have been 
made.  The amount of indirect allocations is determined each year and distributed to the buildings based upon 
current enrollment.  These funds are at the Principal’s discretion, but typically used to support the activity fund. 

   SY 2006 SY 2005  Difference Growth
4 GROSS RETURN   $ 321,467.80   $ 155,493.08    $ 165,974.72  106.7%
          

5 Building Transfers      185,407.59         75,555.52       109,852.07  145.4%
          

6 NET RETURN   $ 136,060.22   $ 79,937.56    $   56,122.66  70.2%
 
Year-to-date, Millard Food Service has shown a Gross Return (4) of $321k and a Net Return 
(6) of $136k.  Building Allocations (5) represent the difference between the two.  In comparison 
to last year, our Gross Return has increased by $166k and our Net Return by $56k.  There are 
many reasons for this increase. 
 

  SY 2006 SY 2005 Difference Growth
Total Income   $ 3,862,153.43 $ 3,466,041.96  $ 396,111.47 11.4%
A Cash Income   3,098,110.75   2,948,443.20    149,667.55 5.1%
B Federal Reimbursement Income      573,135.52      492,304.76    80,830.76 16.4%
C State Reimbursement Income          5,722.90          2,429.35     3,293.55 135.6%
D Contract Catering Sales        60,017.60        10,219.04    49,798.56 487.3%
E Ad Hoc Catering Sales        24,336.80        12,645.61   11,691.19 92.5%
F Vending Commissions       81,438.76  0.00    81,438.76 n/a 
G Vending Sales       19,391.10  0.00   19,391.10 n/a 

 
First, for an accurate comparison, vending commissions (F) and vending sales (G) need to be 
discussed.  This is a new responsibility for Millard Food Service.  At the beginning of the year, 
Millard Food Service took over all vending operations.  So when comparing SY2006 and 
SY2005, this additional responsibility distorts Gross Return and Building Allocations.  However, 
even if these additional sales were removed, we would still have seen great growth in both 
areas.  In developing our formula for building allocations this year, we took into account that 
the buildings would not have vending commissions.  We took last year’s amounts and added to 
them.  We knew by having vending under food service control, we would be able to grow total 
revenue.  The elimination of duplicate sales and competition, and the expansion of the times 
vending machines are open have all led to greater total sales and subsequently, greater 
building allocations. 
Cash Income (A) represents all student and adult sales run through our POS system.  Sparked 
by a price increase, new programs and increased participation, this combination of lunch, 
breakfast and a la carte sales has grown by nearly $150k.  It is important to point out that 
growth in Federal (B) and State (C) Reimbursements out pace cash sales.  These government 
subsidies are earned only on qualifying meals.  The increased participation in these programs 
has led to over $84k in new government money.  Participation increases are detailed in the 
attached building charts. 

                                                 
1 For the current year, the State of Nebraska has yet to define the formula for Millard’s indirect costs.  This is an estimate 
based upon last year’s formula. 

221



Our expanded relationship with Kids Network as well as a new partnership with the Montessori 
Children’s Academy has grown our Contract Catering (D) sales by nearly $50k this semester.  
On top of that, Ad Hoc Catering (E) has nearly doubled.  The volume and anticipated 
continued growth has led to a new position within our department, Catering Manager. 
Overall, sales have grown 11.4% or nearly $400k this semester and represent a large part of 
our increased returns.  The remaining piece of the equation is controlling the costs associated 
with our sales.  Here, we’ve been equally as successful. 
Expenditures are either paid by ARAMARK and billed to the department or directly paid by the 
District.  ARAMARK assumes all food, management labor and the majority of direct expenses.  
The District controls all client labor, building and departmental allocations and a small amount 
of the department’s direct expenses. 
Food Cost 
  SY 2006 SY 2005 Difference  Growth
2A Cost Of Sales   $  1,481,501.76  $  1,383,320.38  $  98,181.38   7.1%

Cost of Sales (2A) refers to all food products - protein, produce, groceries, milk, bakery, dairy, 
beverage and concession – used to generate our sales.  It makes sense that these expenses 
would increase as our sales grow.  They have, but at a lower rate.  As a percentage of sales, 
food cost is 38.3% vs. last year’s 40%.  This should not be interpreted as giving the students 
less food.  In fact, the opposite is true.  We have been able maximize efficiency in this category 
by leveraging ARAMARK’s national purchasing programs,  teaching menu engineering at the 
building level and realizing larger commodity allotments. These commodity allotments are 
based upon last year’s lunch counts.  Since we have again increased participation in the lunch 
program, next year’s commodity allotment will continue to grow and make next year’s food 
budget easier to maintain. 
Labor Cost 
  SY 2006 SY 2005 Difference  Growth
2A Management Labor   $       59,085.79 $       74,218.05  $  (15,132.26)  -20.4%
3A LABOR: Salary Accrual   62,181.52  82,166.43  (19,984.91)  -24.3%
3B LABOR: Wages and Benefits  1,341,875.80  1,253,629.12  88,246.68  7.0%
3C TRANSFER: Custodial   62,805.76  58,503.20  4,302.56  7.4%
3D TRANSFER: Paraprofessional   78,177.56  70,788.96  7,388.60  10.4%
 TOTAL:   $  1,604,126.43 $  1,539,305.76 $    64,820.67 4.2%

Labor cost is a responsibility shared by ARAMARK and the District.  Both Management Labor 
(2A) and LABOR: Salary Accrual (3A) have shown dramatic reductions.  We abolished two 
positions at the start of this school year.  The ARAMARK management team was lowered to 
just one person and the District’s Food Service Technology Technician was promoted within 
the Technology Department.  Our department assumed all responsibilities of the positions 
without filling the vacancies.  In the near future we will be looking to add to our management 
team to better provide assistance and over-sight to the building level. 
LABOR: Wages and Benefits (3B) represents the 190+ staff of building managers, cooks and 
substitutes that prepare for and serve to our students everyday.  This growth represents their 
yearly increases and the addition of the staff at Reeder Elementary. 
Millard Food Service is solvent enough to be able to pay for the times that the 
paraprofessionals and custodians are on duty at lunch time.  Very few school food service 
departments can make this claim.  Out of our budget, we transfer the cost of 2 hours of 

222



custodial time per building and 4 hours of paraprofessional time per elementary.  This cost is 
reflected in lines 3C and 3D, respectfully. 
Direct Cost 
  SY 2006 SY 2005 Difference  Growth
2C Direct Expense   $       346,613.07 $       292,808.07 $      53,805.00  18.4%
3E Other District Expense   30,314.95  29,560.33  754.62  2.6%
3F Merchant Fees  2,320.34   2,320.34  n/a 
 TOTAL:   $       379,248.36 $       322,368.40 $      56,879.96 17.6%

Direct costs are all expenditures that are not food or labor.  Line 2C summarizes the majority of 
these expenses.  They represent a variety of cost codes: paper supplies, technology upgrades, 
commodity delivery, insurances, postage and security services to name a few.  Notable this 
year, is our ability to make capital improvements and still maintain growth in our returns: 
 314.22 Equipment Repairs   $           6,356.42  $           2,032.74  $        4,323.68  212.7%
 314.99 Repair & Maint - Other  7,670.07 843.29 6,826.78  809.5%
 345.10 Replacements  29,006.36 2,786.36 26,220.00  941.0%
 TOTAL:   $         43,032.85  $           5,662.39  $      37,370.46 660.0%

The above categories were used to make needed major equipment repairs, equipment 
replacements or new capital investments.  Thus far this year we have spent $43k which is over 
$37k more than was spent last year in these categories. 
Management Fees 
  SY 2006 SY 2005 Difference  Growth
Management Fees   $         75,809.08   $         65,554.34   $      10,254.74   15.6%

Finally, ARAMARK Fees are contractual.  They will increase as sales increase and have 
inherited CPI adjustments made annually.  They are allocated per meal or equivalent meal and 
will fluctuate based upon the distribution of the meal types. 
 

Summary 
The Board of Education has every right to be proud in the financial performance of their food 
service department.  Increased participation and new programs have led to a top line sales 
growth of 11.4%.  Fiscal restraint and efficient management of resources have kept 
expenditures in check.  We are making and affording capital investments.  We have been able 
to grow our building allocations beyond the growth of sales and the growth of our returns.  We 
pay for our use of custodial and paraprofessional time.  And importantly, this is all done under 
the umbrella of an aggressive Wellness Program and strict Board-adopted Nutritional Policies. 

223



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Investment Report

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Business

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Investment Report – A report of the current investments and investment practices of the

district.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval Discussion Information Only x .

BACKGROUND: Attached is the Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending December 31, 2005.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: n/a

RECOMMENDATION: n/a

STRATEGIC PLAN
REFERENCE: n/a

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: n/a

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Chris Hughes (Accounting Manager) & Ken Fossen (Assoc. Supt.)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: _______________________________

224



M i l l a r d P u b l i c S c h o o l s
Investment of Funds
December 31, 2005

Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund

The Millard Public Schools utilizes the Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund
(referred to as either NSDLAF or CADRE, the financial services firm which manages the
fund) for day-to-day investing. NSDLAF was established in 1988. The fund is offered
exclusively to Nebraska school districts, educational service units, and technical
community colleges. The fund’s objective is to allow school districts to pool their dollars
for investment. The fund invests in items permitted by Nebraska law (i.e. repurchase
agreements, U.S. Government Agency Obligations, U.S. Treasury Bills and Certificates
of Deposit).

MPS maintains two liquid accounts that can be accessed daily. The General Fund,
Food Service Fund, Administrative Activity Fund, Special Building Fund, Bond Fund,
Depreciation Fund, Construction Fund and Employee Benefit Fund utilize one account.
This account is used throughout the month as taxes, state aid, etc. are received and as
bills or payroll are paid. The other account is utilized by the various middle schools. As
of December 31, 2005, the 7-day current yield for these accounts was 3.81%. MPS also
utilizes long term fixed investments (examples: 30, 60, 90 day US Government
Securities, Certificates of Deposits, etc). The current rate of return depends on the term,
with the district currently earning 3.81% to 4.50%.

Sweep Account for General Checking Account

Each day, any balance remaining in the District’s main checking account above the
level necessary to avoid service charges is invested in either U.S. Government agency
backed repurchase agreements (amounts under $25,000) or commercial paper notes
(amounts over $25,000). The interest rate for the sweep account is currently 3.45%.

Bond Fund Trust Account at First National Bank of Omaha

Taxes and other revenues received for the repayment of bond principal and interest are
invested through the trust department at First National Bank of Omaha. The funds are
invested in U.S. Treasury Bills, individual U.S. Government Agency backed securities,
or a money market account which invests in U.S. Government backed agency
securities, based on the funds available, the time line until the next debt service
payment, and the available yields. The trust account balance as of December 31, 2005
was $2,030,725.52.

225



226



 1

NINETY-NINTH LEGISLATURE 
SECOND SESSION  

Revised January 11, 2006 
 

The following represent bills and constitutional amendments introduced during the 2006 Second 
Session of the 99th Legislature that may affect Millard Public Schools or education in general (it 
also includes carryover bills from the 2005 First Session). (“New” information will be in 
boldface.)  “Hot bills” are shown with a border.  Bills that have been passed, indefinitely 
postponed or withdrawn are listed last. 

 
“Hot” bills will be in a “hot box.” 

 
 

Abbreviations Used for Status of Bills 
 

  HC Held in Committee    LIV Line Item Veto 
  GF General File     VO Veto Overridden 
  SF Select File     W Withdrawn 
  FR Final Reading     P Passed 
  IPP Indefinitely Postponed   S Signed 
  V Vetoed      * Senator Priority Bill 
  _/_/_ Hearing Date     ** Committee Priority Bill 
  --LB Amended into another bill   *** Speaker Priority Bill 
  CA Constitutional Amendment   LR Legislative Resolution 
 
  

CARRYOVER BILLS FROM FIRST SESSION  

• LR 1CA (Schrock) Constitutional amendment to permit the Legislature to authorize 
spending part of the principal of the perpetual funds for the common schools 
(HD: 2/28) (HC) 
MONITOR    

• LR 3CA (Beutler) Constitutional amendment to terminate term limit provisions for 
members of the Legislature (Referred to Executive Board) (HD: 2/9) (HC) 

• LR 4CA (Beutler) Constitutional amendment to create the Ethics and Compensation 
Review Commission, change and eliminate compensation provisions for 
employees/members of the Legislative, provide for a legislative code of ethics  
(Referred to Executive Board) (HD: 2/17) (HC) 

• LR 5CA (Beutler) Constitutional amendment to provide for recall of members of the 
Legislature and repeal term limits for such members (Referred to Executive Board) 
(HD: 2/9) (HC) 

• **LR 14CA (Schimek)(Executive Board Priority Bill) Constitutional amendment to 
repeal term limit provisions for members of the Legislature (Referred to Executive 
Board) (HD: 2/9) (HC) 

227



 2

• LR 16CA (Schrock) Constitutional amendment to change term limit provisions for 
members of the Legislature (Referred to Executive Board) (HC)   

• LR 22CA (Brashear) Constitutional amendment to change distribution of certain 
forfeited or seized money (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HC) 

• LR 23 (Howard) Urge Congress to fully fund the No Child Left Behind Act 
(HD: 1/31) (HC) 
SUPPORT    

• LR 24CA (Raikes) Constitutional amendment to permit the Legislature to direct fines, 
penalties, and license fees to the perpetual fund for common school purposes 
(HD: 2/28) (HC) 
MONITOR    

• LB 5 (Thompson) Change qualifications for membership on the State Board of 
Education (HD: 2/7) (HC) 

• LB 43 (Redfield) Provide immunity for employers for disclosure of certain 
employment information (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/23) (HC) 
MONITOR  

• LB 77 (Baker) Change motor vehicle registration fee distribution (HD: 1/18)  
(GF 2/25) 

• LB 87 (Byars) Change provisions relating to deaf and hard of hearing persons 
(HD: 1/19) (GF: 1/27) 
MONITOR   

• LB 95 (Janssen) Change school reorganization provisions (HD: 2/28) (HC)  
MONITOR   

• ***LB 101 (Byars, Connealy) (Speaker Priority Bill – 3/15) Provide for early 
intervention services for children with autism spectrum disorder (HD: 2/10) (GF: 3/1) 

• LB 102 (Natural Resources Committee) Relating to storm water drainage, sewer 
system charges and fees (HD: 1/19) (HC) 
OPPOSED   

• LB 127 (Cunningham, Burling, Combs, et al) Authorize the reporting of school bus 
safety violations as prescribed (Referred to Transportation Committee) (HD: 2/1) 
(HC) 
MONITOR 

228



 3

• **LB 129 (Education Committee) (Education Committee Priority Bill) 
Comprehensive school finance bill similar to LB 698 (2004) (HD: 1/25) (HC) 
SUPPORT 

• LB 141 (Price) Eliminate school budget restrictions relating to allowable reserves 
(HD: 1/25) (HC) 
SUPPORT   

• LB 145 (Price) Provide for school bond state aid (HD: 2/15) (HC) 
MONITOR     

• LB 197 (Raikes) Include funds received due to annexation or replatting in formula 
resources in the state aid formula (HD: 1/24) (HC) 
MONITOR  

• LB 204 (Thompson) Provide a rate of payment for certain medical services and 
emergency protective custody situations (Referred to Health Committee) (HD: 1/26) 
(HC) 
MONITOR 

• LB 223 (Fischer) Create the School Finance Review Committee (HD: 1/25) (HC) 
MONITOR       

• LB 228 (Howard) Provide tax levy and state aid increases for full-day kindergarten 
expenses as prescribed  (HD: 2/1) (HC) 
SUPPORT   

• LB 229 (Howard) Change requirements for school district fall membership reports 
(HD: 1/25) (HC) 
MONITOR       

• LB 230 (Redfield) Require a nonunion employee to reimburse a union for legal 
services requested by such employee (Referred to Business and Labor Committee) 
(HD: 2/28) (GF: 3/8)  
MONITOR  

• LB 231 (Heidemann) Change the maximum school levy as prescribed (Referred to 
Revenue Committee) (HD: 2/25) (HC) 
MONITOR         

• LB 239 (Schimek) Permit certain students who attended Nebraska high schools to 
establish residency (HD: 3/15) (HC) 
MONITOR   

229



 4

• LB 248 (Baker) Change motor vehicle tax calculations (Referred to Revenue 
Committee (HD: 1/27) (GF: 1/31 – AM147) 
MONITOR   

• LB 269 (Erdman) Provide a procedure for judicial emancipation for minors (Referred 
to Judiciary Committee) (HD 2/24) (GF: 4/25) 
MONITOR   

• LB 281 (Cornett) Change limitation of action provisions under the Political 
Subdivisions Tort Claims Act (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/10) (HC)  
MONITOR  

• LB 285 (Stuthman) Adopt the Nutrition in Schools Act (HD: 2/14) (HC) 
MONITOR         

• LB 289 (Mines) Change annexation provisions of cities of the first class (Referred to 
Urban Affairs) (HD: 2/22) (GF: 3/2)  
MONITOR 

• LB 304 (Schrock) Adopt the Education Buildings Review Commission Act  
(HD: 2/15) (HC) 
MONITOR      

• LB 305 (Byars) Prohibit use of tobacco products on public and private educational 
property (Referred to Health Committee) (HD: 2/3) (GF: 2/17 – AM374) 
MONITOR      

• LB 314 (Howard, Aguilar, Byars, et al) Create a Nebraska Heritage Week (HD: 3/1) 
(HC) 

• LB 326 (Raikes) Change average daily membership requirements for freeholders' 
petitions (HD: 2/28) (GF 3/9) 
MONITOR   

• LB 327 (Raikes) Change school district average daily membership requirements for 
freeholder petitions (HD: 2/28) (HC) 
MONITOR   

• LB 347 (Bourne) Provide for socioeconomic integration plans relating to the 
enrollment option program (HD: 2/1) (HC) 
MONITOR      

• LB 350 (Bourne) Provide for inclusion of prekindergarten programs in the state aid 
formula as prescribed (HD: 2/1) (HC) 
MONITOR      

230



 5

• LB 354 (Preister) Provide a service fee for employees who are not members of certain 
labor unions (Referred to Business & Labor Committee) (HD: 2/28) (HC) 
MONITOR   

• LB 357 (Raikes) Change withdrawal and dissolution provisions for unified school 
systems (HD: 2/28) (HC) 
MONITOR  

• LB 358 (Raikes) Change tax levy provisions relating to judgments against unified 
school systems (Referred to Revenue Committee) (HD: 2/25) (HC) 
MONITOR   

• LB 363 (Bourne) Change penalty provisions for criminal attempt  
(Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 1/26) (GF: 2/3) (SF: 3/9)  
MONITOR 

• LB 378 (Howard) Create the Commission on School Finance and require a study 
(HD: 1/25) (HC) 
MONITOR      

• LB 393 (Smith) Prohibit acts relating to electronic mail (Referred to Judiciary 
Committee) (HD: 3/11) (HC) 

• LB 416 (Howard, Beutler, Combs, et al) Change age limitations for state wards 
(Referred to Health Committee) (HD: 2/2) (HC) 

• LB 467 (Byars) Creating Essential Educational Opportunities for All Students Act 
(HD: 2/7) (HC) 
MONITOR    

• LB 495 (Stuhr) Provide a medical cost-of-living adjustment for school employees 
(Referred to Retirement Committee) (HD: 3/2) (HC) 

• LB 502 (Stuhr) Change provisions relating to average formula cost per student 
(HD: 1/31) (HC) 
MONITOR    

• ***LB 505 (Erdman) (Speaker Priority Bill – 3/15 )Change the age of majority in 
certain instances (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/24) (HC) 

• LB 510 (Combs) Provide for immunity relating to employment references (Referred 
to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/23) (HC) 

• LB 554 (Beutler) Change minimum wage and training wage provisions (Referred to 
Business & Labor Committee) (HD: 2/14) (GF: 3/10) 

231



 6

• LB 556 (Beutler) Change provisions relating to financial aid for purchase of required 
textbooks and supplies (HD: 3/14) (HC) 

• LB 560 (Wehrbein) Change funding provisions relating to the Information 
Technology Infrastructure Fund (Referred to Appropriations Committee) (HD: 3/16) 
(HC) 
MONITOR    

• LB 561 (Kopplin) Provide free school meals for children of deployed military 
personnel (HD: 2/14) (HC) 

• LB 565 (Wehrbein) Adopt the Land Information System Program Act and provide 
funding (Referred to Government Committee) (HD 2/16) (HC) 

• LB 574 (Kremer) Change sibling provisions under the enrollment option program 
(HD: 2/1) (HC) 
MONITOR    

• LB 578 (Raikes) Change provisions relating to payment of property tax refunds 
(Referred to Revenue Committee) (HD: 2/17) (HC) 

• LB 579 (Raikes) Change provisions relating to schools (HD: 2/7) (GF: 3/9 – AM525) 

• LB 595 (Kruse) Change weighting of schools demographic factors within the state aid 
formula (HD: 1/31) (HC) 
OPPOSE    

• LB 616 (Howard) Change reimbursement provisions under the Special Education Act 
(HD: 1/31) (HC) 
MONITOR    

• LB 627 (Howard) Require school boards to adopt a bullying policy (HD: 2/14) (HC) 

• LB 634 (Raikes) Change and eliminate certain school transportation provisions 
(HD: 1/31) (GF: 2/1) 

• LB 635 (Raikes) Change tax levy provisions relating to schools (Referred to Revenue 
Committee) (HD: 2/3) (HC) 
MONITOR    

• LB 636 (Raikes) Change cost calculations for wards’ education and special education 
(HD: 2/14) (HC) 

• LB 637 (Raikes) Create and provide duties for the Educational Service Unit 
Coordinating Council (HD: 2/7) (HC) 

232



 7

• LB 661 (Price) Change employment provisions and adopt the Advocacy Leave Act 
(Referred to Business & Labor Committee) (HD: 3/14)(HC) 

• LB 670 (Landis) Prohibit acts relating to computers and electronic mail (Referred to 
Judiciary Committee) (HD: 3/11) (HC) 

• LB 671 (Landis) Provide county personnel policies for transferring employees from 
the state or other political subdivisions to a county at county request (Referred to 
Government Committee) (HD: 2/17) (GF: 2/23) 

• LB 681 (Schimek, Combs, Stuthman) Adopt the Physical Education in Schools Act 
(HD: 3/1) (HC) 
OPPOSE    

• LB 690 (Stuhr, Combs, Heidemann, et al) Adopt the Career Education Partnership 
Act (HD: 3/1) (GF: 3/10) 

• LB 704 (McDonald, Burling, Kremer) Change provisions relating to equalization aid 
to schools (HD: 1/31) (HC) 

• LB 717 (Raikes) Adopt the Reorganization Building Aid Act (HD: 2/15) (HC) 

• LB 718 (Raikes) Change educational service unit board provisions (HD: 2/7) (HC) 
MONITOR    

• LB 732 (Bourne) Change state deposits for school retirement (Referred to Retirement 
Committee) (HD: 2/22) (HC) 

• LB 740 (Schimek) Change provisions relating to the limitation of actions for certain 
political subdivisions (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 3/17) (HC) 

• *LB 759 (Chambers) (Chambers Priority Bill) Prohibit employment discrimination 
based on sexual orientation (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/23) (HC) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

233



 8

2006 BILLS  

 

• LR 253CA (Hudkins, Fischer) Constitutional amendment to provide for a vote prior 
to dissolution, affiliation, and merger of school districts 

• LB 769 (Friend) Provide an income tax credit for certain educational expenses 

• LB 795 (Cunningham, Raikes) Change provisions relating to the repayment of 
incentive payments by school districts 

• LB 803 (Kopplin) Define and require reporting of total per pupil cost by school 
districts 
SUPPORT 

• LB 804 (Kopplin) Change a tax levy limitation relating to schools 
SUPPORT 

• LB 806 (Landis)  Adopt the Car Tax Reduction Act 

• LB 821 (Erdman) Provide for participation and part-time enrollment in public schools 
by exempt students 

• LB 825 (Bourne)  Change infectious disease testing provisions when the state is 
guardian of the patient 

• LB 839 (Hudkins)  Provide for reversing orders merging certain school districts 
contingent upon the outcome of an election 

• LB 860 (Raikes)  Provide an alternative to bonding for educational service unit 
treasurers 

• LB 865 (Howard)  Change certain requirements involving early childhood education 
endorsements 

• LB 880 (Flood)  Provide for reimbursement for special education costs for certain 
students in residential placements 

• LB 881 (Stuhr)  Provide for transportation of high-needs special education students 

• LB 890 (Janssen)  Allow school districts to exceed the applicable allowable growth 
rate for increases in energy and health insurance costs 

• LB 893 (Kremer, Aguilar, Johnson, et al.)  Change the definition of allowable growth 
for political subdivisions 

• LB 898 (Preister)  Change provisions relating to the Open Meetings Act 

• LB 899 (Preister)  Provide powers and duties to the Public Council 

234



 9

• LB 900 (Preister)  Redefine public body for purposes of the Open Meetings Act 

• LB 946 (Wehrbein)  Recognize American Sign Language as a distinct language and 
authorize schools to offer it as a foreign language 

• LB 961 (Louden, Burling, Combs, et al.)  Redefine a term relating to the Tax Equity 
and Educational Opportunities Support Act 

• LB 969 (Byars) Provide limitations on school boards establishing alternating 
secondary course offerings. 

• LB 976 (Synowiecki)  Exempt certain public retirement benefits from income taxation 
 
• LB 987 (Preister)  Create the Education Trust Fund and provide for state funding for 

increased teacher salaries 
 
• LB 988 (Preister) Provide an income tax credit for teachers 
 
• LB 989 (Smith, Erdman, Fischer, et al.)  Suspend the implementation of statutory 

provisions subject to the referendum process 
 
• LB 993 (Byars) Provide kindergarten programs meet standards adopted by the State 

Board of Education 
 
• LB 998 (Cornett, Preister) Provide for extension of certain school district boundaries 
 
• LB 999 (Brown, Baker, Howard)  Change provisions relating to training requirements 

for providers of child care and program licensure 
 
• LB 1006 (Bourne, Baker, Combs, et al. at the request of the Governor) Change 

provisions relating to school levies and state aid certifications 
MONITOR    

 
• LB1017 (Kopplin, Brown, Jensen, Pahls, et al.)  Change provisions relating to schools 

concerning tax levy limitations, transportation, and district boundaries 
SUPPORT 

 
• LB1024 (Raikes) Provide for learning communities 

MONITOR    
 

Prepared by:             Approved by: 
Angelo D. Passarelli Keith W. Lutz 
Director of Administrative Affairs Superintendent of Schools 

 

235


	Board Packet January 16, 2006
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes December 19, 2005
	E.2 & 3. Financials
	F.1. Employees of the Month
	H.1. Approval of VoIP Telephone Systems Contract
	H.2. Approval of Official Newspaper
	H.3. Approval of Official Depositories
	H.4. Approval of 2007-2008 Calendar
	H.5. Approval of Capacity Standards for Option Enrollment
	H.6. Approval of Guidelines for Transfer Within District
	H.7. Approval of Enrollment Option Program Deadline
	H.8. Approval of Rule 1310.1 - Community - Complaints
	H.9. First Reading of Policy 6262 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Taught Curriculum - Field Trips
	H.10 Approval of Rule 6315.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Millard Education Program - Use of Assessment Data
	H.11. Approval of Rule 6700.7 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and Trips) - Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines - Middle Schools
	H.12. Approval of Rule 6700.8 - Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment - Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and Trips) - Overnight Travel and Trips Guidelines - High Schools
	H.13. Partnership with Metropolitan Community College
	H.14. Approval of Millard West High School Contract Documents
	H.15. Approval of Ackerman Design Development
	H.16 Approval of Design Development for Elementary #25
	H.17. Approval of Selection of Auditor
	H.18. Approval of Selection of Insurance Consultant
	H.19. Approval of Selection of Employee Benefits Consultant
	H.20. Approval of Selection of Retirement Benefits Consultant
	H.21. Approval of Personnel Actions:  Amendment to Continuing Contract(s), Rescission of Leave of Absence, Resignations, New Hires, and Voluntary Early Separation Program
	I.1. Enrollment Report
	I.2. Bond Issue Construction Report
	I.3. Quarterly Construction Report
	I.4. Operation and Maintenance Quarterly Report
	I.5. Food Service Quarterly Report
	I.6. Quarterly Investment Report
	I.7. Legislative Update
	VESP Board Enclosure 1-16-2006.pdf
	Voluntary Early Separation




